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1] OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 82% in the lasl 3 years
from £390m in 2020 to
£712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
pecple

Carbon offsets

Our renewable energy sites’
carbon saving is over 822,600
carbon tonnes this year

Number of loans
Over the' year we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK




Chief Executive’s review

Cur Group was in a solid poesuon coming out of

the .ockdown responze to Covia-19, ard our

busness Nas continued to perform robustly
througnout the yaar, This year has seen scrm2

unforecasted growth in value of certar divisions

primar iy ariven by tne increase n erergy proes

Fern Trading Limited Company” or together

e
witn its subsidianas the G oupR’l targets congsiant

growth for sharefio.ders over the ong lerm, with &

focus on steady and predictable growih, this i3
particularly important during more crallerging

econcrmc cenditons. We have a dvers.ted and

rmatare ousiness baefilirg a Group with more than

12 years of trading niztory and armbiion ~“hHe Groun

comprises more than 300 comearies toat have

coerated N g rance of sectors Over Many years

q *eduf long-terre growth for aur

sharehclders. We aperate in ezsential zectors that
wve expect W perform steadily through market

velatility

Frors this secure b
ncremenia. expansion

> ywye Nave neen anle to add

and diversiicaton in a

measured way through saeki~g cut cpportunities in
new adjgcent sectors These sectors provide us
with & Dlatforrﬁ G Cortinue to exp

Ouwr EX:8Tryg s

and in lr.e w.rh
tegy Today, our Group Comgrises
enerqy, croperty lend;r:g,
fipre and kb

Fealthcare infrastructure,
ouse uilding divisions, We have Srown
tobe a ngﬁiﬁcam Cresence wInin our mest
roducing 4 2% of the UK's
9] 7% of the UK's onshore wind
ergy oJiout, ang buildi~g a £35.m short and
medwr term lending ous.mess that facilitates tne
construcion and

V]
A
™

faFeTe! Jf‘w’_'TOrS’ o
sobr energy ard
n

improverment of nomes
throughout e L

e Compary's Share orice celveres 10% growih

| of our targe
of 4% growtr ger an~um Tre exirac-dingry growis

a

over tre past 12 months, well akead

Ele to our energy dvis on, whic™ g3

oenefittad 7o g signifizant increase .n loog-term
recasts and energy forward raies

~ to infla CThis

At

norease in the value of our energy div s.on was
sLpported by sola cverato-al performance across
all sectors and scme orgarc growth in newer

£Ctors,

We rermain a suppor
1.69C full-

own ard operate, and iNd

e emoloyer, with more than

e stalf acrsss the Businesses that we

rect emoloyrmrant
provided for hondreds more people trough

CONracts that we have In place

A reflection on our year

Our business raised E404 from investors tris year,
rtre
trngmn £712n in revenue

g}

dervered cons s rives while growing capital
deployment, rese
gererated across tne Groug (2022:

assets of £2.219m (2021 £1,.888m restaed).

S 425 and net

The financial staterrenis “or the year show an
cpefat g profit before tax of £43m against
e ad sutcome of a smal

eI
counung proft This
rergy

during tre year. Arost 80% of our busmiess
Comer ses renawable energy generatng assets such
as sclar ereqgy <tes ard wind farms, wh ¢~ provide

CAg-TErm revenue sirean

s These are ntertionaly
diversified across a range of tech~ologes o mitigate
against poor performance i a spec fic secier ana
conribute towards steady, predictacie share pree
growth, however, the rvalues can stll Ge imoacied
by changes n pnang and demana We have zeen
consecltive and Material increases in long term
energy prce farecasts anc ene-gy forward raes
Giobaily over the last 15 morths as the giodal
aConomy recovers frorr the Covig-1% panderic,

and seaks arernative soorces of energy as a result of

& Alcng w th infahicr, these

ly ircreased tre vaiue of the

k,'u,J © energy atsets

Our assets in trese secios rave peen bolsteres this
year wih the acooisition of n
jursd-ctions as wel 35 Jds rg our expert se (o enter

he U cormmercial and raus
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Chief Executive's review

rarkets and starting constructon on a arge wind
fasm in Ausiralia. At the start of the yes- we added
rire additiona
whi ch brings us up to 26 stes in te

| sites to our rezerve power divigion
tal lcompared to
ten stes for most of 2021 Trese sites have
perforred ahead of expectaions, generating

LB TDA of £26m (2021 £1rn) during the year,

Our successful and weil-established bromass
erform well and nas
ionin 2015
This year, « have been particularly pleased 1o see
strong perf
Snetterton, East Angla, which was acqu red in Apri
2021, proving to be a valuable addiion to the
business During the year we purchased a Waste
to—Eﬂerg/ “aC Ury cLrrently undear construct onn

div's.on CONUNUEs 1o D
daliverad s able returns since acguist

ormance at our neweast iomass site in

e facility has been in cevelopment for
taree years ang wll be capzabie of processing over
es per annum of non-recyclable
hou"el” ld, commercia, and industral waste which
waolld otherwise be sert to landhit o exported
This will generate 17 Mite of
encugr o oower 30.6C0 nomes. It will be the frst
large-<cale, subsigy free waste-to-energy pro,ect in
westerr Scotland ard projected compiation daté 13
in early 2024,

Over recent years, many of our energy assets have
been under corstruction which has coniribued w
our previcLsly repcrted acc s Tnss
typical of such businesses during growth phase

cunting losze

ever when cash generative, because finance costs
and accounting charges, such as depreciation,
exceedad revenues. Ths division has now reached

our target size gnd secter splt

Accordingly this year i am pleased o repori an
accountng profit before tax of E48m against our
budgeted small ancounting preit Th g sbhgntly

larger thar expected proit s due o the maturty of
the portfolio and figher energy prices, resulting in
increased revenue from our energy division as well

as ar increase in inflation (as explained be'owl

low carbon electnoty,

up aroand
redium

Car praperty lending bLsinoss makes
27% of the Group znd comprises short and
term secured loans to expenenced oronerty
professionats This establisked part of our business
L following a short period
of slow down gurng Covie-19 when we

cortiqued to perforrm w

intentionally chose 1o wnte fewer lcars Cur average
loar book was L8 leans this year 10 JK borrowers,
Our ending civision has always operated &t

corsarvatve loan |
order that T mamtain

o value lavels (pelow 70%),
S 2CCess W valLable secunty of
tinere 1s a reduction in property values This strategy

has served the Grolp we'l since inception 12 years

iy

ago, and it has operated through pernoas of change
cveral tirmes The Groug i< taking a naturally

t:ous approach when assessing ~ew lending
oppaoriunities in ight of the changing economic
outlook. To date, the Group has teni £.2 2bn of
property loans since inception in 2020, suffering
ony £5rr in capital losses. This strony track record

[

is tne result of our careful approach :n this sector,

comprising disciplned due diligence, censarvative
-value ratios and an ability and willingness to
reduce activity in this sector gunng tmres of

loan-to
econcrric uncertainty We w ll continde 1o acopt
tris aprroacn throughout the coming year.

The healthicare division makes up around 4% of the
Group and is broadly perforring well. Our
retirement villages business, Range’ord Howdings
Limrited {("Rangsford’) continrued 0 seli agartmants
at three sites, commenced construction of g fourth
village ir Chertsey, and acauired a fifth locaticn
near Cambridge during the year Sales at the
Chertsey site are exoected to zommence in 2024,
while corstructon at the Cambridge site is
expectad 1o start in 2022 with the first sales
comrmencing i 20Z6.

Cur fibre divis.cn was establshed in 2019 and
remains an area of growth for the Group, now
compnsing of sx operating busnesses Cuar
residential businesses, Surass ¢ Fibre, Swish Fibre,
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Giganet and Allo
nbrp o fr\a nra

omts Fibre are builaing ultratast
mises’ broadban
regicis of the UK which b
iarger aperators. Giganet ¢

¢ networks in

have pean overlooked by
provides connectvity to
nomes and Businesses across the JK using CtyFibre
ard Openreach irfrasiructure and Vitnifi s a scftware
develiocpment company which nas developed
prognetary software to aliow Imtemet Sery ce
Providers (o sel. connectivity over wholaesaie enabied
networks, includ ng Alipo nts =ibre. Vorboss is the
UK's only ded'cated enterprise fibre netwaork 1o focus

on providing connect vity 1o businesses in Landon.

It the year, our residential itre businesses

st cagial in expanding thelr
networks i tae Home Countigs, the South and

continued W inve
Southwest of England, a~d are rnow orboarging
customers to their netwaorks, generating recurnng

the Groun. Our st
are abie to meet cuctomer demand for

revenues for ~of-the-ant
networks
a resut of
ed usage
video-on-demana services. in tondon, Yorbnss rag

nigher broadoand spesds required as
mare working fronn-home and increas

a.50 conurued o build and has nstaled over

500km of flbre with 2 comrmiiment to offer 10Gbos
fibre to up to 15 0 busiresses in Central Lordon
by 26‘27

Wrilst oor fibre division remaims .0 a growth prase
for the next 3-5 years we do Nt expect it to report

an accountng profit.

Towards the enc ¢f the year, we adaed a new
property developer 1 the Group, with the acguisit 'on
cf Elivia Horres ("Euvia™) for £85m Elivia is an
establisned nouse odilder developing mid-rmarkeat
farnily Nomes i Londen coriruter towns and

LA

vitages Whilo this ren

o
("‘Q

enis & very smal. oast of the

j

Croup, we nian to grow it & meatures way over
ar ubimae argel (C detver

niclscing 200 <igh cuatty

TvE y2ars with
CrIes par year

gl
affordabie hormes Elivia Nas a strorg ex sty

zasersshc e whe gre ey 1o rurnang the bus niess

Inflation and Interest rates

Thie higher rate of irflation exgenenced this year
has been resporscle for some of the
outperformance against expectaunns in the
Company's shiare once. HM Treasury forecast that
~1gh inflaton s bkey to be present unt. 2025, as a
result we expect 1 rece ve more revenue for the
errergy generated within cur energy division, ana a
es that
sorre of aur energy sites benefit fror, -ncreasiﬁg

migher value from the government subsid

the vawe of those st2s. However, a shart pericd ©

righ nftaticn such as forecast has very atue efect

on the rate ar waicn the Group is expected to grow
Ths s because the renawsile erergy sites we own
derrve ther value from discounted projecied future
cashhows over the ime they are expected o

operate Tor, typicaly 20 years or mare [f tre

cuttook for long-term irflat.on were 1o increase, the

our share pree shauld be positive

se it wiouls INCrease e revenue each of our
rtrastto s

C

sites would sx;ect 0 make, iskele)

Thne expactea rse n interest rates 1s foracast o
returm to nermal after a sigrif-cant period of very
Ow cates The immediate imeact of ths on our

QUSINESS 5

s 5 expestec to be broacly neutral s nge
our Group 13 interuonally structured 56 as rnot to
expernerce sigrifican

rates crange We continue ©

Tvalue erosion when interes:
taxe a cautious
approach within our Lemdiﬂg usiness where the
rising interest rates ate feit more closely, ang we
rave tre abilty o reduce the number of ioans
we wrie of atter tne nsk profile of cur lnans
Thw:ug*“ reducing loan @ value ~3tios 07 pausity
3CUY Ty N Certgin parts of the market srould tmat

feel appropnate
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Current trading and outlook P Performarnice in our healtncare divisior continues

Since the year eng, the Groun has contrued to to be stable, and we continueg W remair oosiuve

perfﬂrfr steadiy from an operaticnal perspactive i about the cpportunites o ir’nprove perforrmance n
nd N ure vath our expectanons glneit we have this sector

seen share price growth anead of targe: d\;e et g year end, we have continued to ould out our

contrued iNcregse Inang e energy Drice !

. Abre nelworks, with construction traclkung in ine
forecasts Our growth tar gets for the Group cver . .
‘ ) with Gl expeclat ons, We cortlinue 1o review

e meaium and lorg erm reman unchanged, and . h
. ; opportumities for bath organic and inorganric

we cortinue to focds on maintaning a divers fed ‘
growtn SUppofing our exizing managemeﬁ teams

business thaths capasle of deliverng more

) n deliverng s strategy.
predictzile growt for shareholders,

in Cecemrber 2027 we have acquired the rights to

£25m of night o uze mobiie licensas from Three

UK, thus makirg the first step towards becoming a0
mromle virtual netwaork operator,

The recenily arnounced Electricity Gene-aor Levy
EGLU witnin the 2023 Finance Bill, wil bave ar
impact or the retums gererated from our energy
partfolic over the naxt 5 years, This is further

aver time

iscussed N the growp finance review on page 27, Cur mix of pusiness areas has cevelope

d
) ‘ anc may evolve further over tne years ahead, ariven
Our property lendirg business contirues 0 . e

by the overarching ‘mportance we p.ace

erform strongly, with increased deploymenrt in this .
b SHENYY Wi N ey " \eeting the objectives of our shareholders. This

secter snce ne year end. We focus on snert term

‘ o should not be read as any ndication of a wholesale
loans (our average current loan erm is 17 montng) 5

) change in the sectors i which we operate, but as
which enanies us 1o acap! 1© Changes in out.ook

i reflectior of tre role played by the stralegic
swiftly, we feel this is partcularly imporiant 10 the

mandate in protecting shareholders’ interests.

current ecoromic climate.

“Qur mix of business areas has
developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”

st sfﬁg

gt
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Our business at a glance

Wihat we do

Fern Trading Limited (
o' nearty 320 subsidia

Fern’) s the parent comrgany

Group operatas across ﬁve key areas energy
realthicare, tendng, Sbre and house biudlairg Gver
e past twelve years we have DUt a carefully
diversified group of operating pus' nesses that are
well pesitored w0 celver long-tenm vaiue and
predictaple growth for our shareholders

1. Energy division
We gencrate power from sustainable scurces anc

sell the erergy produced either directly to mnaustal

corsumers o 1o large networks Many of oul

rerewable energy sites qualify for government
incaraves, which represent an oodwt ona
ncome. We have alsc utiise
renewalle erergy 1o construct Fac
ongoing operavorn, At year end the Group had

21 sites under construchicn

2. Healthcare division

we provide homes and feisure facilities o our

ge'rg populator, and privele hospitats whicn

e
provide righ-a

=

uality nealthcare services across

ooerational stes in the LK

es kogether e "Group” Our

sourte of

3. Lending division

We lend ¢r 2 srorand medium torm, secured
nasis to a large nurneer of proserty crofessicnats
We also prowde Endrcing o enabne other buginess
to buid assets and ctrer residertal anc

commerc a., D«’C-DQW“I‘E'S,

4. Fibre division
We own and operate fiore hroadhard retworks
3z zreas of the UK. We build the

~g conrect them to nomes and

across va
retworks @
gLsinessas to pr, vide our custormers with ultrafast
fibre broadnar

5. Hoeme building division

During the year we success’Jlly entered tre house

suilding secter, anguiiing Elvia Homes whrch Fas a
strong track record of developng homes i a

~

susianable marner. Treg corngany is a “ull-iervice
property develoger, meanng it provides services
frar the wesigr, i tne enginesring anst then iiral

construction to enswre tne delivery of aaaitly

workrmanshio

Solar, wind,

hiomass, Property lending, Retirement Ultrafast fibre Residential house
\andfil aas development villages, private broadband across i
gas. financing hospitals the UK g

reserve power

CommitoTier
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Our business at a glance

Tre strength of our Sroun's strategy is in both its
cperatonal diversity and the return profile of thase
businesses, Our lerd ng business provides flexibity
and strong retlrns over the short tarm, white our
energy, healthcare, fbre ard heme oulding
divisiars oiter vizib Uty and ctaniiey of returrs over

the lorger term

Ihe scaie of our business s a key strength, enabling

ed cperalicns as

us to agquire large-scaie estabush
well as tha opportunity to enter re
raunimal nsk to the whole Greup b

Sector split’

Wind 22% —

Solar 20%-7

r
Reserve power 6% —

B B Owning and operating assets 69%
EWE Lending 31%

Otmer 3%

Fern's sector
allocation

businesses with comgprenensive tusiness plans and
strong rmanagemenrt teams, This enables us to
contnde to dversify odr business without
compromising or: the quality of our aperat.ens.
Cver the past threa years, we have successfuily
entered the hbre proadband sector and we now
oW si¥ companies with exciting pars o deliver

ultrafast oroadband across the UK.

Healihicare 1%

Property 27%

¥ - Reserve power 2%
- Solsr L%

- Flbre 5%
" Heatthcare 4%

~ Landfili gas and biomass 9%

‘Sector splitis given by vaiue, as represenled on tbhe company balance sheet of Ferr Trading Linuted




Jote
Lo

e

2 | STRATEGIC REPORT

Our business at a glance

Where we operals

We are groud that the businesses
withun our Group maxe a peitive

coninbution © socety, rom
b

generarng clean energy o the }\_
creation of homes and the orovision @ 5

of guality heathcare imirasiruciure, %‘

-
@

&

& e
@ ¢ w7
Solar siies = 3 LR g b
. % Wy ] a1/
tandfil gas fac ities § &
3 & @ . g
. e w2 -1 LB
Biormass power s7aticons & # . & P
® T e ® a5, w

] J A NOR
oo
m
72 J
xE a3
3 oo
3 3
z
T
©
W
it

A4

Fospitals
i Fibre ~etworks 5

As we ve growen Sur expertise 17 these sectors n ire U we've beer albie to use Cur inausty krowlscge to
lake our experisae to exciing opRortuniues overseas, ncludirg constiruci~g sclar and wnd farms in

Australia, Frarce. frewa-d, Foward and Freland.
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Our business at a glance

Making a difference

We are proud (0 operate a Greup that makes
pasitive contribution to society across the UK,
generating renswabile eme'gy providing quaality
healthcare irfrastructure ard retirernernt living ard
high- Jper—d prosdoand o urerserved
CouUNtry

Energy
We cxrrﬂnhy own 220 energy siles, producing
5GW a year That's eniouah erergy to power over

a mllion homos.

Gur combinaton of technowg.es: solar, wind.
resgrve power, D:omass and andfll gas
complement each othar wall, helping the JK

meet its erergy targets irrespective of the weather.

The Fern Community Fund is a social erterprise run
by the Group, which works to distribute commurity
ted from our wind farme. This year, the
£14m to local

funds genera
Fern Community Func has awarded
con“mur“zity groups suprportea 12 iocal university
siudents through cur Student Scholarship Fund,
and provided a Mr-tnr fuel subzidy to 706 rezidents
whs are local to the Group's asses

Healthcare
Qur retirement villages provide high-gualty
contemoorary living spaces, wilk 379

o

accommadation units
schemes i varouds stages of de

curren:ly in place, an:
2loprnent offerng
over 530 additicral accommaodaion un:ts.

A frie~dly community 15 &t the heart of our
refirement villages, wich 15 why in our
cevelopments we provide central fac ities and a

fiub of social actwity for our residents,

lL.ending
The losns we mad
fund the corstruct:on of student accommaodation

a during the year have heiped to

ard much reeced residential propert-es.

We continue to extend loans to 24 taxi drivers and
fleets to enable them to use electr c vehicies,

reducing casbon ernissions i our capital

Fibre

Through our fibre dvision we are building out tne
JK Four
of our management tearns are fogcussed on
tuilding cut fibre optic broadband retw
residertial customers and small businesses, and a
fifth is 2uilding a fibre network 1o deliver enterprize
connectivity. Our sixth s 3 software deveicpment
in the Fore sector and

fibre optic hroadhand network across the

orks for

company cperating
providing services to our group companies

Within thiz division we have pians 1o create 4
network providing connectivity to over one million
progertias in the next three years, many of which

are in small towns and vilages that don't currently
have access to internet connectivity Gt for rmademn

ways of working and communicating

Mot only are cur fibre busneszes bringing
corne
also generating errp:oyment opporunities for
young individuals via tramning academies ard
apgrertceshp and are drving dwersity In
Teiecoms, witn orie of our cornparies having

clivity to umdersewed communities, they are

scheres,

launchea a number of init.atives 1o recruit woermean

nto the sector.

Home building

Our home buiicirg d vizion utiises 2 high
proportion of sustainable timber frame construcuon

methods and insialls air source keat oumps n ail
properties, leading the way in this zecter ana
helping reduce carbon emissions

: ,H i
i




Our strategy in focus

Chur businesses

Energy
Through our energy di

ion, the G!OUL‘- owns and
1 supply gas a

k, as well as corstruc

Suerates energy sites whic
electr.c

g
O

—

ity into the networ

renewabie enercy sites for future sale Of the 22
erergy sites that we own and operate, 194 provide
rerewable Suting to the Gro p'

00sitioN as one ¢f the largest oros

energy, contak 3
LCers O
renewable energy fromr commercial scale soiar sites
in the LUK Energy sites are typically expected to
generate stable proils for many years, as sucn
owning and operating these bus’nesses is attractive

f ther potent

to the Group because al to delver

redictabic profits over the long term

Renawable energy s generae power from

sustanatle sources and sell en
directly

ergy produces atner

o targe ~dustrial Consumers or 1o tne
rnetwork Mary of our renewabie energy sites asg
quabfy for gover~rment incantives, which resulis noa
parton of e gererated energy berefting rom
rates that are 'locked in' for a spec fied parod once
a guailfy'ng site is ogerational and accreditation has
becr grarhed, This has reducec <ome of the ‘mpact
of the voiaslity i long-term enargy orice forecasts,
As new sites builtin the Jil do nor qualfy for
ristorc government incentives, we are seairy more
tn the market “or gites Lke the cnes we own

mteres
and cperate
Owring anrd
our strategy and currently makes up amraost 0% o

up has

operating energy sites is a core part of

the Groun's net assets This cart of our Gro

Did you know?

gerergted higher returns this year tnan excecied
due to market condsions but crucially it has the
o provide siabie returns over the long-
term. This comb naliconr is <ey 1© our sirategy to

ha.ance ris< anc return across the range of Group

acuvities to genmerate target returns for shareholders
“Our energy sites generated over

3,750 GWh of power.”

Due i
are acle o secure long-ter

o the high-quality energy sites we own, we
naricing from
miEcstrearr Darks at COTDC—‘UU‘JE’ rates o entarce

our retuns, which helos us to deliver trhe level of

“eturns our sharenold ect

(TJ

4
&
]
Pas
T

-

Whi.e our renewable energy cusiness slarted fe in

the salar energy sector, the Group has ouilt
oxpertise acros: other adiacent techrologes
reluding ooshore wind, bromass and fandfll gas.
sapported by reserve power plants wiich provice
packup power to me Natonal Grid ~he Greup
therefore benefits ram dwersification witnir this
cart of 115 busness, since weaker cond:ions for
energy production from one technoicgy often result

in stronger producton elsewhere. The Group aiso

gans s onihcant benefit fror its sca
as our Cutiness is spread acress over 220 sites,
vasily reducing tre risk 1 Grodg pro f

sfe suffers ar cpefationa

Ldisruption

if laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.
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Our strategy in focus

Ir acdition to our UK sites, the Group 1s deveio@mg Since returring to normat working patterns we have

ar ar incraase n the number of patierts paying
for their owri treatment as tney face long waiting
lists for NES treatment Desp:te the lfting of

wigespread restrictions across the JK, Cowd-19

sites overseas, 10 junsdictions that we urderstan

well. These present an atlractive opportunity as they
build on our sector expertise in countries at an
earler stage of renewable development Currertly
we operate wind farms i Ireland and France and cornndes 10 2ffect the acute care sector with &
sofar sites in rrance ana Australia We nave several siressad MES and increased infect on conral
wind sites uncer consiruct on in Foland, Frarce megsures that remain in place

3 ral.
and Australa Lending

Lending cortirdes to be a core part of our buziness
and has provided the Grodp wth a grofable and
caslh generative secior over the £ast twelve year

Guring the year we acqu red nire raserve power
plants and cne energy from waste site Fol.owing
constructon, we sold two wind farms .n Finland and
shortly after the year end we aiso sold Darlington
Point a large =zolar site in Australia. D consists of property wend-ng, which provides

Tris well-estabashac part of our Group rrainly

shors-term financing to experiencec professional
Healthcare J P Y

Arough oL hezlthe divis on. the CGrouo property developers, puy-to-let iandiores seekirng
nrough oLur healthcare Crou

p s N the private meaicai and reurement livng
sec Ou' retirament living business, Rangeforg,

bridging finarce, and development financing,
which provides short and megiurm term financing
o companes

owns and operates two retirerment villages In
Wittshure ana horth Yorkshire and 1 currently A key benefi. of the scale of cur Group a d of the
bus ress that we have ouilt up i this sector is ou
ahility to mit gate nsk through having a Iarge

number of short and medium term loans spread

developing three further sites for future operations

Cur orivate medical business, Ore Healthcare owns
and operates two private hospitas in Kent and

. ‘ . ‘ across small projects o individual oorrowers, We
Hertfordshire, providing the very bezt level of care - prel - N

proaciively marage counterparty rg<s through

in modern, wel. ecuipped hospiial faciliues. o N
undertaking careful borrower due dilgence, tak ng

“Lending continues to be a
important part of our
business and has provided
the Group with a profitable

and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.
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Our strategy in focus

secur ty over assets typic
and mainaining ¢

Gy on e first charge casis
orseryative 0an-to-vaue ratios
Not all lnans wilk perform as expected ard these
measures help to mirirnise the impact of
cerformance 1ssaes on an incividual ioan This s

further rmitigated through the value that we lend to

indrviduat borrowers, relative to our total :carn book,

wiich is currently spread on average across 182

lwans with a7 average indvidua! loan of £2 3m

Fibre division

Owr fbre division includes five operationa
companies bulding fibre networks in the Uik and
o software deveopment company.

Throwgh our residential f.bre Dusinesses, we are
ouilaing new grysical fiore ~etworks for
commurri'es in the UK and so far have built out
fibre infrasrucrure (v underserved parts of Deven,
Somerset, Dorset, Wiltshire, Hamoshire,
Worcestershire and the Aome Counties. We are
a.msng o pass over ona mllion homes over the
n

nex

i~

-

o
=
D
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Building these large networks involves connecting
=

large datacenras and telephone exchangeas in the

UK with homies ara cusiresses, effecuvely

regiacing the ¢

half of the 20in Ce—ntury. SArassic S s ang
Giganer are vert.cally integratec ey botn own
the filbre m.ra* ructure and a.30 have the end

castomer relat onship as the imternet seryice

opper wires that ware [31d i the first

astruciure
onboard other 153 o the Alpoinis nenwor

srosrger or ISP Adponts owrs finre
and wall
to sell cornectivity to the erd customer

we are bailding a netwo < in
55 (" 528"}

crto Ousir“e

Through Vorboss,
Londcn to suoply busin o-busir
enterprise connect -/sty cire

customers. Vorooss nas stalled over 50

ficre aptic cables in London snce 2020 and has
acently launched a sngle 10Gbps product to

]

narket recogn sirg that ami tous London
businesses w i quickl
connectvity they've relied on to date

y requre more than the 1Gops

L rapd growth it cur fore Civision

rn
since 2C18 ang we expeci this dIvVISIoH o coninue

f zur business pver tirre

ts ould plans and reach

more commurities in nead of yitratast broacbard

Home building

Qur new rome buliding busness, Blvia 1s a full
service hodsebuiider, acguir rg land, cevelcomg in

te, and s.bseguenily selirg tre homes 1o

ravidual buyers Theze sites include a mix ol open
rnarket and a¥craatie Pouses and strve to deliver
igh guasty asprraticral homes The ousiness 1§
growing fast with projectec arnual tumover of
£250m a~d 600 nouses bult cer year forecased

within the next 2-3 years.
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activities to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Paul Latham - ¢ w00
Paul is Chief Zxecutve of Fern and 15 regpors ble for the day-to-day runring of the
business, He 15 also a managing director o° OJctanus nyvestments Lirmited {"O17,

where nz has worked simge 2005, Ol s a <ey supplier OF rescurce arc experts
to Fern. Faul's dual role ensures that this relationshin works effecuvely ara - the

best irterests of Ferm's cnarenciders, Padl has hiad various gereral managemen:

i
!
]
i

and nternat consultng roles across a numiber of secters and brings with hire

a wealth o ;mdustry and bus.ness experierce

e Heith Willey
a

Keith 15 an asscciate professor of strategy ard entreprereusship at Londor
Business School He aiso holds vanous nen-executive girectorsivps ard advisary
roles at nigh growth znd more mature comeanies. In his role as nor-executive

chalrman ne is responsitie for the effective operaticn of the 3oarg, s welt

as its governance He brings to the Fern business independent commercial

experience gained from his tme N academia, privaie equity nvestrment,
consulting and vanous hands-on operatonal roles,

Peter Barlow N~ T oo 5o
Seter has over 30 years experience inirterrational finarc ng of infrastructure and energy
As a senior executive for intemnatonal Power, Peter was responsible for arranging over
£12bn of project end corporate funding, as weall as banking relationships and treasury
activities. He has spent over 20 years working intermaticrally for -SBZ, Bank of
America and Nomiura, financng acquisitions and greenfield projects in the energy
and infrastructure sectors H's combination of Beard-level inanang and energy
experience over numerous erergy sub-sectors, and his ali-rourd knowledge of
all the sectars in which Fern operates, adas significant value 1o te operaton of
the Board as well as 115 strategy formation ang deploymenrt

Tin Arvhur - 00l oo
Tim is 2 chartered accountant with more than 25 years intermatonal expenence
as a finance directer of both pubhc ard private cormzanigs. Initally he worked
for Price Waterhouse n Brmingham and Chicage. More recently he was Chief
Frrancial Cffizer of Lightsource Renewab.e Energy Lic, a global teader in the
funding, development and long-term operauon of solar photovoltaic projects
Tim brings extensve financial and accountancy knowledge to the Board as
well gs an understarding of dyramic technology businesses gained from his

executive positions
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Brincipal risks

Management identify, assess arg manaage risks
associated with the Group's business ogjectives and
strategy. Ricks arize from external scurces, thoze
wiich are rherent commerc.al nsks in the rmarket,
and frorr cperstional nsks contaimec within the
systems anc processes emp\oyec watrin the

bus.ness Qverail risk expo
the Group trrough the d»
both by secior and gecor

Risk Mitigations

Market risk: .

Tre energy 3eCion 5 eXpeErenaing
sgnificant turbulence anc there 's

3 nigk thart forecast .eveis of ircome

are not achieved due ¢ changes in

wholesaie energy prices, off-take

contractis or government subid es .

Due to tnis turbulent envronmer:,

the potentat for ircreased

irterveriinn oy the reguiato: is also

@ risk,

Cranges in Governmer: policy
rmiay resud in reducec incore

streamns within the group due 1o
aadu oran 1Dve

Operatmnal rlsk .

Levels of erergy produced may
be loveer than antcipated due (o .
sub-optimat weather conditiors
or perfarmance 1ssues with
"-u p’mﬁnt WILET Tnay resultin
it unflarrmj acwntirme

Fmanclal nsk .
Revaerueas ffrem ereargy
generalicr, or zale orocescs

rom the

exsected diee 1o flicaicns in

foreigr excrarge “ates

Construction risk: .
Coﬁsiruction of tne zites takes

The principal risks tnat the Group are exposed ©
are describea beow, along with tne rriigating
actions we take o reguce tne potental mpact of
the rsk We alzo include cur assessment of whether
the

‘kelirocod of tne nisk has noreasad, decreased
or remained ne same
Cross

g e e e Gee n e ems Skeae s weme SRR YHS 8 RS 6 . . e v rntn

Coniracts are entered into wihich Sx me income ‘or a
portior of the energy generated by Gur sites.

Long-term government backad ofta<e agreemeanis are
In place, such as the Renewalr e Obligat-on Certif cation
('ROCT scneme. 30% of our erergy income was

generated from ROT revenue,

We engane w th the governrent and the Gffice of Gas ana %
Electnc iy Markets {{ OFGEM'} to contbuie t an naustry voice Increased
with policy makers who set futere requlaory reguirements, (e to market

ns:ablity)

Unpredictabiny J e weat hr—' 15 rnivgated nrougn

dversificanon of technglog:es and locat on of st

Recular serv cing of assets is urdertaken 10 ensure assets F—
R

are kept . good congiicn and minm.se the nsk thas

assets arg urava lakle for a longer percd

MNo cfange

i M rﬂ't' n cft

il > f
assets and revenues are expected to Le derved
overseas stes

roverents,

The Group enters “xed pr ce contracts w th contraciors
winere anpropnate to reduce excosure o rere mm

No crange
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Principal risks and uncertainties

S N T U SIS U

» Managermens «egularly revews fhf: competitive lancscaoss

Market ﬂsk

Expected sales from customers
are lowver than anucigated due (o
ncreased comgaenuonr from other
oroviders.,

A change npolizy by the
Gutalors m favour of iav'w
Dua‘ors could impac: cur ah

to deliver planned dﬁve oorent,
redacing revenues and efficiencies
gained fromi a arger presence in a
DarficLlar ares

Ly

Constructmn rlsk
Construct.on of the netwerk
takes ionger or § more Costly
thar a~ticipatec due to resourcs
avarabil ty or increased cost of
raw raterials,

Operational risk:

Network service s interrupted or
unreliable leading to potental loss
of customners and reputational
damage.

Mitigations

ir target baild areas to ensure plans do net con*lict with
ctrar atenative network operators

« Managemen: engages proactively with the Office of
Communications and the Government 1o ensure the

Censhte of smaller operators are well urderstood and its

interesit are aporoprately renresentes,

« We are ar actve parilc*paﬂ* N relevant ndustry boo
particularly tnoze -epresenting alternatve network
operatcrs

« The Group has contracted wth a number of different
suppliers to reduce the exposure to ary ong individual
entity Selectior of Guisource partners 1s managed
through a detailed procarernent process with long term
visizility of work a.lowing partners 1o glan financial and
pecple resources accordingly.

« Where Supcly crain probiems are expected for artica
iterms our teams generally have 6 montns stock of Nbre,
duct ard other rnaterials on hand, and adva'wce ardear
t@cnnwal eq in rﬂ@rtww h o g \egd Hm

« Ournetworks are built In a resiient way with Gwverse
rotte options should a failure occur In cne oute
This, combired with an ability o dentify and resclve
connectivity 1ssues guickly, minimises dowrtime of the
ﬂ‘tNoflf

S
S m.t:%mms;m

s Bia e
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Change

e b b AR 8L haEhen & hans T o n bt o s b S o £ B4 2 T A KR D EERA TR S b BB B i x2S a8 famd

¢

Increased
{due tc more
cermpetitons in

the marxet

Increased (due
tc Increasng
cemanrd far
resOarce in
the sector as

alternative
network
provicers scaie

sl

o
fo

No chiange




Market rlsk = Thetearr: pro-actyely manage our postonr rh

mc.rea sing nflauon and interest mar<eiplace and are prepared (o enforce where necded f

rates iead 1o a market-wide bah moves into default.

afforaabiity ssue, resuiting 1n a » Curloars are made at conservative lear-to-va ug (LTV) s

: Cie e N, \ T/~ T S
drop in croperty valoes across al rasios witn a maximum LTV of 70%.

sectors of -2al estate. Tnis may No change
impact cur abibiy to recover a
lwan in full through a refinance
or sale
Counterparty rlsk = Loenz are secured against chysical underiyirg sacurnty,
Loanrs may be made to unsuitable such as a charge over the property or ciner asteis of the
counterparties, impactrg our borrower These are wypcaily or a frsicrarge Gasis o
acility wrecover the 'oan bzlance ensure maxiiurm chrarce of recovery snoud erforcement .%
il zoton pe needed
« Thcorough aue dlgence i€ parfCrincd prior o writing U
loans, inclucing pronerty or lard valuzgtions snd creait SCONCMET
checks done on borrowers, chrmate)

« Where loans are wnitten for assets under construcucn,
milestores ard covenants are putir place o encure
Jrrmetﬁ Dror o reeasing fLriner dr

Risk Mitigations Change

Market risk {Healthcare and = Flanning consertz on undevelopea tgrd are oplirrisad ro
Home Building): rnax.mise revenues ard reduce tre risk of iosses on sale. %
A fallin nouse prices could

Ircreased (dae
impact our ab-bity to generate creased id

o unstabie
expected reveriue from the sale [Siale]gleiggtiel
of apartments in o retirement climatej
vllages and hiouses bult oy Zliva
Construction risk (Healthcare . LR enters Gxed prce contracs wiers spsrooriafe
and Home Buitding}): 1o reduce exposure (G Increasir g matena: ! .
Construction taxes longer or = The Group only works wih reputasle 3rd partiez with a F=
15 M ore Costly thisn articiparec sTrorg track s2coqd of delwer ng sim lar proiects Mo change
due to resource avarabhty or
ircreased oot of raw matenats.

Health and Safety risk « Trhe Group maintams robust polces and procedares

{Healthcare}: r='atng to the provsion of meaica. services Wereview ths

Tre prevecton of injury or through coroucting requ.ar rierngi nipeciions, and are

avocanie 3:50 subect to exterral nssect ons oy regulatory Dodies. J—
patents s o . The P
ang s crisical to . a fin No change
good repatator Litigator as

aresul of medical maloracice

could result mdarage to
recuta
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk Mitigations

e Ta s s s w3 AR SRR LS e s cmat ket 5e

Market risk: « Where floating rate debt s in place (where interest vares
Anincrease In bace rates may Ir line with an underying berchmark rate), the Group A%
incraase costs or debt facilites, enters nto hedging arrangements to ix a portion of these Inereased
mpacting the Croup's abiliny t© paymerts throughcut the term of the facility, Hedgirg {due o rise in
service debt as it “alls cue arrangernents arg outined in Note 21 of the Gnancial interast rates!
staternents.
Liquidity risk: « Adetziled cash flow forecast s prepared and reviewed
Poor management of cash witrun by managerment on a monthly basis, ncorporating cash
the Group could impact e availablity and cash requiremerts across the Group. On at
Group's abilty to meet cbligations least a guarterly Rasis this is shared wik the Board
ac they fall due = The Group monitors bank covenants on an engang basis Y
to ensure continued adherence to covenants Where ‘ .
covenants can't be rmet, forscasts are updated for the NO change
lower cash avaiazle as a result of the restricticn.
+ Tne Group has a flexiple finance facility which can be
drawr on gt short notice to meet immed ae busirness
needs
Health and Safety risk: « We have developed robust health and safety policies in
The safety of our errployees corrplance with 1SO45001 across the Group 10 ensure
ardincse employed throuch the wel-being of our staff %
contracts are of paramount « Health and safety training 1s crovded o our staff and
imgortance, Mere s a nsk thas confractors on a regular basis Increased
accidents n the workplaze could
result In serious inury or deat
Cyber Security risk: « We employ a Chief infarmation Security Sfficer {"CiSOT
An attack on our 17 systems and who is responsible for dala securnity across the Group and
data could lead o disruption reports guarterly to the Board —
of our operations and loss of « Tne CISO works closely with our pusinesses tg ersure e
customer data Loss or misuse ddequate standards of security and rformation No cnange
of data may result in reputationat mManagemert are met, ’

damage, requiatory acuon under » Each of our busresses that nold customer data has their
GDPR and potentiat fines own dedicated resource for IT and secunty.

The strategic report was approved by the Board of Directors on 16 Decemter 2022 and signed on its behalf by.

PS Latham
Drrector
16 Decembear 2022
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Corporate governance

Section 172 (4] statement

The Board consider that they have adhered o the
requirements of section 172 of the Companies Act
2006 {ine "Act’], and have, in good faith, acted in a

way trhat would be most likely to promaote the

swccess of the Group for the benefit of its members
as a whaole (having regard to all staxeholders and

(=18
ot

martters set cut in secton 172000a-f] of the Act)

In the performance o° its duly 1o promote tne
success of the Group, the Board has renard to a

f rmatters, inciucing tne lkely

uence of ary gecsions in the leng tern, ana
0 the views of the Groug's key stakenoiders
ild frust and ensure it fu \y understands tne
pacts of the decisio
Board fuﬁ‘s these duhies partly by celeganon o
o

ns it rnarkes The

smmitteas and e beards of suts diary
urderta<ings, who operate wathin a corporate

governance framewaork across the Greup

Al every Board meeting 2 review of nealth and

salety across the group, financial and coaraional
performance, as wel as legat ana regulatory

complarce, s undertaxen The Board aiso review
cther areas over t-
Cun's Dusiness strategy, key nsk
stareholder-reiated Mmatters

e course of the finarcal y-_ar
ncludirg the G

Q

versity and mduswwty
enyironrmental matters, Cor

O

rate responsioility, ard
comgliance ang iegal matters.

governance

n by the Bo

3 5:ra=‘eg>c rature and
takeholger
slowing are

9]
(3
O
C
=~
=
M
=
v

SIONS It made nire year

ana deciding to move shead w tn
perations, wh'ch s part of

o]
<
<
T
3
@
=
Q
(@]
n
%l
(SRS

vsion, in August 2071 the

Croup acauireg a large scale, reacy o construct
wind site in Austraiia. Tris deployment sligns
with the Group's strategy tc cont nue °¢
develop renewable energy sites which provide
precictable, long-term revenue streams, The
Board conzidered the omportumty and how it

aligred wth our ooiecuves 1o make z positive

cortrbution tc tre community and envircnmernt.

Tre Group decided to expand into cur newsst
divis or, nouse buliaing. in May 2022 the Group
l-service prooerty

acquired tlwvia homes, a fu
deve.cper, provding services from the design,
to the engimeenng and the~ ana. construction
to ensure the devery of gualiny workransrip
D versfying the Group's asse: bece ard enterng
well thought

Cut Wit 10Ng E&rm growth in reina. Tre Board

Irto this new sector has been

assessed the sirategic cpporfunihias within the
sector before decwa ng o rmove aheas with this
acguisiicn, considering how tnis woudld impac:

existing puzinesses withun the divisicn and how

it atigned with the Group's strateg c onjectives to

ceiver long-errm vaiue anc pred«clabe growth
for our sharehoiders.

Reviewing and cecding to move ahead weith
mnereas.ng bioma
our renewables division, In Ot

&

sz operations whicr s part of
r2C21 me

Groun acoures a large scale, waste-to-energy
corstruction site in Scotlana. Th s depicyment
aligrs witn the Group's slrategy 1© continue to
diversify the Group, d
Sites wiicn crov de oredwctabte
reyerue sirearms, and provid

evelop rerewsbie energy
org-terrm
e resilence aganst

whowesae pricng

cnanges in the UX energy
rrarkel, Tre Board cors dered tne opoortu-ity
ard how T atignad with our

ma<e a positve contrbuucr o the conmmuT iy

cglectvesto
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Corporate governance

+ The board decided © change audit firms via a
tencer process for the year ended 30 June 2C22
The GroJg had changsd sigrifcantly since tre
previcous auditors were appainted and therefore
we were unable to reliably assess the vaiue for
money we received. Taree firrns underwent
the terder process ana Ermst & Young LLP wers

remercial

ent audt

selected becadse of their strong co

urderstanding of cur ousiness, effc

methodology and value for money.

Business strategy

Our business sirategy is set cut on oages 21 to 14 of
the Strategic Repors. Management prepares a

deta
card on an annual

led Group budget which is approved by th
tasis and forms the basis for
the Group's resource plarning and deployment
decisions. In making decisions concerning the
businiess plan, the Board has regard first and

10 15 strategic focus, but 3is0 to other
matters such as the interests of its vanous
stakenclders and the long

foremost

-terriimpact of its

actiors on the Groug's future and reputation

Shareholders

Shareholder relations and generating shareroldar
value s & key cons.deratior when the Board 13
making strategic decisions. The prime medium by
which the Grous communicates with shareholders
is through the annual regort and financiat

statements, whicr aim to provide shareholders with
a fuli urderstanding of the Group's activities and its
resuits. This information is published on our webste

at www.ferntrading.com.

Employees

Trie Group's employees are furameantal to the
overal. success of the business. Tre Directors fuifl
their duty to emoloyees by entrusting oversight to
subsidiary Boards which tbe Chief Exscutve of the

Group also sts on

The directors of the subsidiary undertakings
rT=anage the day 0 day dedision making,

and cemmunicatons with employees

and ensure that pecple are treated fairly and are

valued with respect to pay‘ benefit and conditicns.
employees wish 1o he

therr

We fully realise that our
informed and consuited on matters affecing
work and I o 1 propiern-solving
s of interest and

3 s frmly commutted to a

s involver
affecting ther own ares
responsibiliy. The Grou

pot oy of good commrunication at al levels and we

air 1o estaplish a climate which constarstly

encourages the oper flow of information and
~thly tezm brefin

ideas Presently this ‘nciudes mo

at a loca: level and the publicatior of monthly k@y

performance indicaters covenng Ouipul, oDeraiing
costs, and mealth and sa‘ety.

The heaan and safety o cur ernployees in the
15 a continual focus for the Group, given

busiress. Tne Directors review

workplace
s broad coperationat
Fealih & Safety Reporling at each board meell
ensure approoriate poucies and proceduras are in

ng o

place 1o protect the healtn and safety of our
employees and contractors. Where there are

potential deficiercies or .ssues, these are followea
up and resolved or a timely basis, with the Board

having oversignt of the acticrs taken.

The Group cuisources activities and management
of certain operationa: activities to external supplers
Where activities are outsourced the Board ersures
tnat they are managed by reputable supolers who
rmeet all the relevant inaustry and regulaiory
cornmitments as well as treating employees fairly,
Expectec standards are documentec in all service
contracts ang adherence to these are continualy
monitored by Board through their service

agreement with Ociopus Investrnents Limied.

Suppliers and customers

The Group acts in a fair manner with att suppliess
and customers and seeks o mamtain strong
business relat.onships with therr. This s achieved
by all contracts peing negotiated through a fair and
trarsparert tender process wnich includes

assessing the ‘'mpact on the long-texm cbjectives of

T i3
d»’.%m o

b




3 | GOVERNANC

Corporate governance

the Groun. We review our payment processing
tirmes against contracts every six month
suppliers are paid promptly and this information for
the company i< avallable on the www.gov.uk
website

s toensare

The Group ensures it acts fairyy and i a transpars

manner 1o al customers across all divisionrs and

services, and acgwely engages Lo resolve any disgutes

or defauits. Yhe Board clo
metncs and engage

urderstand the issues If business performance does
not meet

Ssely monitors customer
s with tne management tearm o
Customers exoectations

The Board considers CCiopus investrents Lim (e

o be a key business pertrer and sapoler with
responsitiaty for the provisicn of cperanonal
oversight, inancial admin-siration and corrpany

cecretaral services

Community and environment
The provision ard operation of sustainatle
infresiructure 3 at the centre of the Group's

strategic goals Trrough s business activites the

Group seexs 10 maxke a pos tive contribution (G the
community, envircnment and economy. O

renewable erergy business s nelping the UK meet
its renewabie energy targets, our private Nosoitals
have supnared the NHS thraughout the Covid-19

pandemic by proviging treatrrent for non-Covid-18
NI patents that otmerwise could not nave been
carned out, and our Fore network will give people
i rural commuanities access

broadband.

10 high-speec

Business conduct
AS Sirectors our intention s 1o behave responsibly,
the Gus ness win

ersurng Maragerrant operate

mtegrty ana

21N arcordance with the hig~ standaras

ernance expeced of & nusiness
Enton through our cusiness
o pages 110 14 is to operate in

teciors and work with other Gusinesses that share
Gur vaiues

Business ethics and governance

The Board s resoonsibie for ensunng that the

of the (g
ucted ir cornplia

ctiv ies UE ang s varous Dusin

cond
applicable 3o

2w'th the law ard

vernance ard reg.latcry regimes, an

r adcherence wth prevaﬂimg best practice for tne

relevant ir*rcuszry This incluges reviewing internal
5 ar approprate

expeﬁence [opress

i ag gt irere |

s
e

<illz ang

m

edon

Boarg, and 2rsurng that the finarcial statements

give a true ard farr view of the state of affairs
detait car be found n the
f directors resconsipiliies on page 29. In the year
032

O
flagyec

o' the

o

oun Fusther ¢ statement

O

June 2022 no areas of concern nave naen
ed in thiz =gard.

—+

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters
The Board's polcy or emptoyes, uman rights,
soclal ang comrr unity 1Esues. ervironment policy
and anbi-corrupluon and brisery matters is discussed
(sla LdGE‘ 29 The Board
Cuture that is

N the Cirecrors’ Report o

ngsed
o

actively promaoies a corpo
on etrical values and oehav-cura




o
4,

3| COVERNANCE |

Group finance review

Heview of Hnancial statemeants

The gurpose of th s reportis to provide addtiona the share pnce and may not reflect changes nthe

explanatcry informaton o tne frandia. saterents fuil market value of assets or busimesses owned by :

I rneasurirg cur performance, the Gnanciat the Group.
measlires that we use incuce those that have been .
A numoer of acausitions were made dunng the
derived from cur reported resuts norder ©
year, InCluding rine operalcnal reserve power sites,

ircinae factors that distort year-on-year
Wwaste 1o energy ste under consiruchon, a

cormizarisons. Thase are conzidered non-GAAP

a
corsruction ready wind farm in Ausiralia and

financ.al measures,
seventeen solar roofion sites under constructinn
Shortly after the year end, ir July 2027, w2 solg

A reconciliation of these to tne financial resuits car

be found N note 28 of the notes to the inaraal : Darlington Point, a large solar site in Australia,
Sraemenis. : . ‘ ‘

o P To support continued expansion, we had buis up
The frarcial statements show assets at cost, as such ¢ casn reserves at vear end of E256m which included
they do not ref.ecs the fuldre vaue that we expect o | a large cash inflow of £97m from placing exteral

derve from these busiresses 7o that exent refinarcng in Jarlington Pont pricr 10 sale.

accounung petformance may dffer rmatenaly from 4
{restatec) Movement

2022 2021

£'000 £'000 £'000 %

P;enuequ 711,830 425,302 285,528 o
RTDA © asaei 104036  onamo
Hro .‘Ios;;- tlefu. rax h 4;!.6(-)4 - (22 663) R 70,_;67" - "316%"-
medng L Ox fr ;;t of prfﬂlL, - -“360 901- S 385 512 . (?461 S (67)
sh T 256 415 h 172,478 8393 49% 7 ‘
\Je’{a’ 5 ’ o ‘2,219,448 i’é’s} 8az smenr 8% ?

Financial performance

Overall, the Group has reported a profit before tax of |
£47 6 for the year ended 30 June 2022, whichisa i

£70.5m improvement on the grior year (2021
Fe2 7miass resated). Overall ©
87% to £295m (2027 £104m restated), which is

primarily cue to increased energy generation as well

as increased energy prices.

Revenue increased by Z287m to Z/12m (2021

"Esrrnngs hefore interest, tax, deprecialion a

DA Increased by

and amaortisation

E£425m) which was predomimantly driven by a 84%
increase In revenue within our energy divison This
growth iz two fold, increased energy generatic™
from raving cwneg/operated one of our biomass
piarts for e full year and a large solar plant in

Acvstratia reaching comerussionmg, and a significant
inCrease in average energy prices over the year due

to the mismatch between supply ard demand,
exacehaed by the ongoing conflict in Ukraine
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VEN

venue gr
div 1on but we

}U

stromg

ow il was

our encrgy

L ¢
50 Saw & marked imorovement in
revende frorm our retire CThis part of
cur tusness nas rebounded well from e

ment \ma“e

Iockdowrs required by the
g 41 urit
52%) ancg an inCreasing ir revenue
£20.4rn (2021 £22 7}

Covid-19 pa-demic

rasponse, sell s inthe year [ar increase of

of E7/5m ¢

Revenue
25% to £42m

rom our lending dwvis.on saw a arop of

2021 £57m) due to a smaller average

oar: hook over the year as cash was rrade availzble

c
to grow other parts of the business

Operating expenses for the year were 1N Iine with
cur expectahons, with the mcrease orimar by driven
by r fore division as

¥ InCreased operating cosis n our

it has ex paruui Qeﬁﬂancmg exterral gebt o
over the oast two years has

1 orterest costs of £2 om

Sec: lan]ele J\/F“j ms

Included in the resut orofr of £28m
recogneed on e sa

sf £1 6m of defered

als

< "J‘z P wina fd'ﬁ'F ir ‘iﬂ
ard a reatisation consideration

ri solar s.tes SL/LA I SrEVIOLS YEars
Financial position
Cortinued sharenclder interest znd nvasimen

t has
seen net asset: grow 10 22,219 {2021 £1.888m

restated’ | tne year ended 25 Jure 2022, we
issued 120m shares (2021 1501 for a rotal

£2 2174 Tre
S1992m of

restructarnng

cons.deration of L204m (2021
cormparative year ~urmbers include
consderahion reating W group

fro

Net currer: gssats of £808m (2021, £563m resrated)
re

external imancrg and ar Ircrezse 1 wor in prograss
with r tre fore 319 rnouse Caldmg divisors Our ican
booxr procerty lerd ng has decreased by 5% o
E36Lrm (2021 £388mi and 21

represertas 16%

% of nat

Cazh gener

ooeranng aciiviics decreased to £42 (2021
F342ry which ras peen utilised alo exerral

tong-term ﬁmam::ng and ca
ne business.
ficre broadband secior over

o Orow i We nave irvested

sabstantally into the
will require furthar czptal

e past

four years which
expenditure over tne next 3-5 years, Increasing our

drver<ifcation acros

Oftre casn ~elc at year end, £E220m was ned in

our energy, Fome baidng and hore subsdaries
whera there are 8 number of construct:on and

infrastructure projects Luncer way, reguiring cdrh o

vear end.

=
i
al)
Al
8]
o
)
e
o

]
g
0

<
3
n

Baance sheet gra arises on

businesses. Acqured busiresses, |

renewaole erercy sites, ofte~ have a3 mrarket value
in excess of the om')an‘-/s net assers, refiect ng
their reliable future moome streams Account ng

converdion regu'res nat only icentifiacle

rared o0 the baiance sheetl 30 the account

ca ance of the additio

carnct record the

valise which comnprises the futire orofits that sites
are ex ppfuﬂd to deliver The aaditoral value n
excess of the value of fixed assefs hpm;ebe_. {sLic

PLI S fnp‘ty, the market value of the energy
generaticr: busnesses (or indeed any oparaticnal
burwnesseﬂ reflects the value of “Uiure excecied

\moty Suying targ
We pay
market vaiue ‘or the sites we acquire which may

wind tur.nes

gradua.y ce wrter o, tyoically over tne ‘e of tre
s.te, as excected returns are realsed
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Sector performance

Energy (2021 £196m restated), partally driven by increased
site costs whers £120m was incurred at cur

biomass sites and £93m at cur reserve power sites,

[}

As economic activity and glooa! demana increass
througho.Jt the year so too did whoesale emwg

prices, driven by movements in commaodity pric tre prces for raw matenais have irceased, on
which resuited in the overall increase in revenus

earnod et oss our energy sites. T hese market

average, by 69% due to anincrease in the supply
costs The combined cost of sales for the reserve
power and biomass sites increased by £110m to
£217m (2021 107m). It should be noted that the
revenue generated Dy the biomass and reserve

factors nave restlted i1 an increase in revenue of
84% tc £593m (2021, £322m)

Co*;espoﬂd\'r‘.bly, EBITDA also increazed by 112% o
£266m (2021 £1267 restated; reftecting the
signscant ncrease in energy revenue Overall total
aperating costs Increased by £1300 10 £327m

powsar sites increase d oy £152m dunng the year to
352 (2021 E16l

FYao22 Fy2021 Fy2022 FY2021 ?

Production Production External External

(MWh} (MWh) Availability Avallabllity \

B(JT;J s e e e e s g e 1050033“ 886553 e ﬂadme%m e e 852
Landfil Gas 240,226 256,026 97.9% 978%

Reserve Sower 493,355 141,086 94.2% 92 0% §

Solar 554,858 517,112 97.7% 56 0% E

Wing 851,214 831,741 90.5% 93 1% '
Toml R, 3 099 5902532 019, e —— e s
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Healthcare
Hezlthcare operations contnbuted £46m
2021 £42mi) 1o Group revenues

reflecting the impac: &f increased revenue

for the year

(A
B
o
<
®
-
T
o
o
C
il
ol
o
o
<
3
-
=
o
—
5
B

icl-22 pandernic resnonse

requwred by the Cov
seiling 41 unts in the year lar increase of :Q°/é frame
£20.2m

2021) ard increasing revenue vy £7.6m
(2021 £12 /i)

Lending

Fevenue from lendi
(2021 E57m)
[oan book for 2022, which resulled in & decreased

orimariy

rever~ue stroam for the year. The otal loan baok

educed by 6% nd ¢
£386m) This recucton in the loa” bo oP

—\
fv

Ao £361m at tne yes
abios
5 otner

30 o o2 avaranle far Cpporturilies acros

-

Q

s
sectors withir the Group incloding acguisit
canstruction. The make-up of tha loan book has

ghtly where we have issued a hgher

J

ans withim the residertal
sector, as well a3 more larger ioans in the

development sector a~d the corrmernial sector,

EBITDA ‘o
of EB.7m fromr a profit of nearly i in the prior

e lendi-g div siorn cecreased t

a

a .0ss

year Ths rroverie-t refiects a provision of £250 n
eqg

a
the ican Dook agamnst oans 1o reserve power s'tes
and a provisior agarst a healtncare loan of £24m
In the year o June 2022, £3%m was provided

aganst loans versus £21min the prior yaar

relatvely new divis on, all the fiore busineszes
[

are N the buld nhaze ard are startirg to ad
CJUstorners 1o e« netwo ks tS/ 30 Jure 2022, the

divsier hac tuid passes over 150,000 hcwes e

antic pate the buid

3-5 years a5 we expand ne “ore networks

stgde 1o contnus for 3 further

Althougr buid ~g a fipre netwok s capial Intensve
ard eads 1o a of asser on palance sheel the

drision as
businesses scale ther coerations and develop
rrarket presence. Overall the division reparted an
EZITDA loss of £55 4 (2072 £22 5m loss), wnich
s Ine witn expectations and reflects tne

CONCUrS large operaing £xpenset as the

developmental siage ¢f the dvision

As we bulld these networks out, the assets will be

recogrised on the balarce sheet at cost which

carnet include future value which 1s expectad 1o be
as the assets have been internally

ferent to the share pr.ce where
the future vaiue expeac
aseels is included.

cted o be generated from the

Home building
Elivia Homes was acgu'ren .n May 2322 and has
thererore had lir ted irngact or tre Anancial
cerformance durng the year The business is
forecast to deliver £78r revernue ard £6 5m
EBITDA for the year ended 30 June 2023
fraora the first quarier of 2023 indicate ¢

3 broasly performing n line w’th SHDCC

ations

Funding and liquidity

Cur strategy is te secure ong-term fira~cng a:
conservaive ievels fromr mamstream Danks (o
ennanco returns from cur renewable energy

d £E1LO4adm of

ancing wth £441m of

ousinesses At year end we a2
exte’Nal oroject fin

headrocm availaole.

Tius

market considers to have stac
as pre

goverrment mcentives or pmvﬂr techrology and as

4\

rabies Js to acguaire busnes
e characterstics suchn

dictacle cost sase, revenue streams,

sUTh mave ower retures

twathodt leverage weuld

be nsuficient for cur shareholders It also aliows us
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the current interest rate velatlity, We continually
review financing arrangemerts to ensure that they
are compehwe ard opumised for the needs of the
business To ensure cash s managed in an agile
marner we mamiair a ‘lexible finance facility
which car be drawn down or repaid 1o meeat
immeciate pus.ress reeds

Looking ahead

Tre Group has rebounrged well from the eects of
the Covid-19 pandemic and has ocutperformed
expectations Whilst the current economic cutlook
is one of challenge and uncerainky. we ant ¢ pate
mirimal impact 2n our results due o the
predictable revenue streams and cost base, and
essertal nature of our activities Couplad with the
diversification we nave built up across the business,
we are positoned strongly for these turbulent
times ahead

We contindge to pay particular attent.on (o the twin
chailenges of nsing interest rates a2nd surging
irflaticn - both noterms of lending and portfolic
maragement. These trends impact all areas of the
Groug's susiness and are Lkey t© remain for the
foresesanle future, so we remain disciplined irt our
nvestrment approach, continurg © monior the
situauon carefuly and taking a pradent agpreach to
any current and ermerging risks.

We are positive about the conunued opportunity

for growth and continue to celieve tnat the

business s positoned weil o take advartage of
future growth opportunities across its core business
areas Energy. lending ar
operationg are well estadlished i tne markat and

rnue 1o make excellent progress with robilst

house buiiding

con
performances in the new financial year in lne with

cur planned strategy, since the year end we <old &
arge sciar farme in Adstralia for a smal. profit, witn

proceads being redeptoyed into new cpportunities

Depicyment inia Fbre continues to rell outin line
with expectations ana the Group 1as now passed

maore than 150,000 homes by our fibre networks

€2}

ales activity in our heathcare divisicn remains
trong, with noarly 4C% of arnual sales budget
rea

w

d/ compieted Cr resorved across al sites a5 at

all

the end of Septerrbe

Announced witnn the autumn statement as part of
the 2023 Finance 51, the UK Government wik
eract a 45% wirdfall wevy CElectricty Generator
Levy” or "EGLY on wholesale energy mar<et
revenues in excess of Z75/MWh Tnisis expacted 1o
appty t¢ the Group fror
March 228, The exa

in mid-December 2 022

1 January 2023w 31
tlegsiation will be publisted
ba‘ej on tne intal

< been performed

retease ar impact analys
Z e rmpact

as at 30 Septermnber 27 ?‘ estimate the
to be a drop in vatuation of app.roximately £45m
for the sites affected, which contributed to a

v

2.0p decrease n tne share price to 1770 in
December 2022,

We expect 1o gererate sirong operaung returms
from our established divis'ers far the corming years
in addiicn to the antcipated outilows for o
corstruction phase assets The heathcare and
fibre divisions are well into therr build phase in ing
with our long-term strategy ana we antcipate
stror g returas over the riext five (o seven years

LUpOon maturty

PS Latham
Drrector
16 Decemier 2022
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
staternents of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022.

For a summary cf tne Group's results, refer o tne
Group finance review o pags

9
not recommended payment of

The directors Fhave
a2 divdend (2021, EN.

The directors of the Company who were 'n cfice
during the year and up (o the date o sigrnung the
finar cial staterients were:

20

T Arthur lapooinied 2 July 2022)

Refer to note 22 ir the Notes 1o the financia!
siatements

Refer tc the Sirategic Report on page £

Refer to; the Strateg ¢ Report on gage 12,

1
w

N
n
“
=
o3
m
fD
(W

tion 172 statement on page <

e e T

e e

[he Group's ob ectives and policies or financial nisk
managemeant |z’-c!udmg mforrrwat:on o1 the
exposure of Tne Group to cred

trisks, guidity risks
and rrarkat nisks are set out i note 21 o the
finarcal staterments the Group's prrccal ris<e gre

set out 10 the sfraeqic repar on page 16

on £14c 000 of the Companies

Act 2006, the cirectors nave clectad o distlose

Az perm.2d by 36

nformation requires o be 1n the gireciors report
by Schedue 7 of tre “Large and Medium-sizea
Comparnies ang Grouns (ACCoLnis and Reports)

Regulatons 2f‘w in J‘P srategic report,

The Board ~=cogrises trat a corporate culiure

ased on sound ermica, values and enavours < ar

a
CeEvOUrs (o corguc

asset The Group en tits
ousiress with integrity, in an ethical, professicnal
and responsibie mannear, reating ou” employees,
customers, supp.ers and partners w th courtesy

Applications for eriployment oy diszbled perzons

are gven full ard fair corsigeraticn for all
vacarcies, navirg regard to the'r partcular astifudes
and abiives. Shauid & person become aisebed
wrie rithe Group's employ~ent, every efort s

Tade o reta n ther i emsloyment, g ving

aterrat ve tra n'ng 35 Netessary




We fully realise that cur empioyees wish to be

informed and consulied ¢n matters affecting their

work and to be involved in protlem-solving affecting

treir cwri areas of inferest and responsiBiity

The Group s firmiy commitied (o a policy of good
- .

omrmumcation al zll levels and we aim 1o estasiish

climate wnich ¢ urages the open

oY)

stantly enc

woof infermaron and deas. Presertly tmis
includes montinly tears briefings at a local level and
the pubucatcon of manthy key periormance
indicators coverng output, operaung costs and
health and safety.

. f P

Tne Group nas in place an agreemert wih Cciopus
Irvestments Limitea
Group covering operat'ona oversight,

adrrimstraticn, comnany secrétanal and comrpany

O provide services to the

accounting

PN T e T L L ISk
oL Lot R S £

The Board adopied a formal environmental, social
and corporate governance (ESGT policy on

30 September 2020, The Group "ecognizes the
need to conduciits business, in e manrner that s
responsible to the environment, wherever passible

As a low energy user, the Company 1as elected not
to disclose data onits energy ard carcon usage

Fern Trading Limited 1s the
Groun that meets the repcring criena and

onty Cornpany ir the

trerefore no informaton is provided for the Group
as a whole,
Tre Group's has an Anti-Brbery Folicy which

introguced robust grocedures (o ensure full
comeiance with tne Bribery Act 2010 and to ensure
that the highest stardards
conduct are manamnad.

of profess onai ethical

Ir-accordance wth the recommerdations of Thie UK

Corpcrate Governance Code, the Board has
considered the arrangemerts in place W eNCouTage
Gro

staff of the up or manager of the Group 1o rase

concarns, in coenfidence, withun ther organisauon
about possible 'rpropristies in rratters of finarcial
reporung or ot

arrangements

~er ratters. ‘1 1s satisfied that acequats
are in place tc allew an mdependent
invest.gation, and follow-on action where necessary,
10 take place within the organisation

B
A

We arc committed 1o acting etnically and with
integrty in all our business dealings and
elattonships and o mplementing and enforamg
effective systems and contros to ensure modern
siavery is not taking place anywhere in our own
business orin any of our supply chains, corsistent
with cur obligations under the Maooeam Slavery Act
2015 We excect the same nigh standards froms all
of our contractors, suppliers ana other Dusiness
partrers. As part of our contracthng processes, we
expect our suoplers 1o comply with the Modern

Slavery Act 2015,

The directors are responsibie for prepanng the
Arnual ReDOft and the finaric:al statermen:s in
accordance with applicable law and regulation

Company law requires the directors 1o prepare
Anancial statements for each financial year. Under
that law e directors have prepared the Group and
Company Fnarcizl staterrents 11 accordance with
Uriteg Xingdom Cenerally Accented Accountirg
“ractce (United {irgdom Accounting Standards,
comprising RS 102 "Tke Firancial Keporting
Stardard applicable in the UK and Republic of
reland”, and applicable lavw, Under company law
the directors must "ot approve the financial
staterments unless they are satisfied that they gve a
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true and fair view cf the state of affairs of the Groug
and Cornpany and of the profit or less of the Group
and Company for tnat peroc in prepanng tre

financial staternents, the directors are required o

« select suitable accounting colicies and then apnly
them cens:stently,

= state whether applicab.e United Xingdom
Accounung Stardards, comonsing FRS 102, have
heen followed, subject to ary matenal departures
disclosed and explained i the Rnancal
atemerts,

« mrake judgements and accounting estmates that
are regso-anie and prudent; and

« prepare toe gnandial statemen

1 the going
corcern basis unizss ithis nappropnate to
presume that the Group and Tompany will

continue in business

The cirectors are
the asseis of fre Group and Lompany and herce
for taking reasonable steps

also responsibe for sa'rguarding

for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularites.

The direcicrs are responsble for keeping adequate

accaunting records that ara suicrert to show ard
and Comgany's transactions and

aizclose vt~ reasonable ac

explan the Group a
Curacy at any e the
financiat position of the Group anag Corzany and

nanle them to ersure that the financial stazements
oImpames ACt 2006

cormply with tie C

The cirectors are res
and rtegrity of tiﬁe
1 the Urited Kin g

gnd dissemingtic

pons ke for the mainenance
cmpany s website Legsation
orr: goveraing toe preparatior
of inarcal statements may differ

frorm Legwstahoq T otner ursd chons,

Az permitied by tre Articles of Assooaion, the
diractors nave the berefit of an inde ity which iz
a gualfying third-party indemnity provision as

cefned oy section 234 of the Comearses Act 2506
Tre ndernnity was :in force throughodt the .ast

firancial year and s Currerty in force

Ir (ne case of each director 11 ofce at the date the
Directors Repcrt s apnroved

« sofar as tre drector 's aware, there s no relevant

audi in‘ormarion of woich tre Group ard

Company's aucitors are unaware, anc

« triey have faken all the steps that they ought

to mave taxen 35 a direcior in order 10 make

therselves aware of any relevant audt
ntcrmaticn ard to estabesk that the Grous ard

Company's auditors are aware of that nfermation
Thus conSnmiation 1s gven ard should be interpreted
he prov's.ons of sect or 418 of
the Companies Act 2006

N gooordance wiin

sl

2022,
a5 o be reapnointe

Errist & ‘(ourwg LLP

"ave ind-cated

having besr appoirtea N

for ancther term and witi ne prc)p:sed for re-
appointment in accordancs with section 485 of the

Companies Azt 2006

Thne Direciors report was approvea by the Board of
Drecters or 16 Decempear 2022 and sigred on s

tebaf by

PS Latham
Drrezior
25 Decamber 2022
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Gpinion

We nave audited the Grancia: statements of Forn
T"adir’z(“
ubsidiaries the 'Group’) *or the year ended 30

ure 2022 wrich compnse the Group Statement of

Lirrited {'the Parent Company’) ard its

o1

My G

Comprenensve ircame, the Group and Parent

Corngany Balance Sheet, the Group Staterment of
Cash Flows, tne Groun ard Parent Statement of

3
“hanges in Equsty ang the related rotes 1ta 29,
irclading a surmary of signincant acaount'ng
polices Tre ﬁﬁamma reporting framewaork that has

’3

been zpoled
8'1(1 L)TH?‘E
inciuding FRS 102

Stardarc apoucable

therr preparation s applicable law
K quom Ac.countémg Standards

e -inarcial Reporting
nthe UK and Repubic of
reland” [United H gdom Generally Accept
Accourtng Practice)

in aur opinion, the fnancial statements.

Jive a true and fair view of the Group's and of the
Parent Companry's affairs as at 30 June 2022 ard

the Group's orofit for the year then endeq;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with
United .mgdom Generaliy Accepted Accournting

Pract ce, ana

* Nave been prepared N aocordance with the
requirernients of tne Companies Act 2006

Basis for opinion

We corducted our audit in accordance witn
International Stardards on Augditing (K] {1SAs {UK)
and applicable law. Our responsibilites under those
stancards are further described in the Auditor's
responsitilities for the audit of the fnancial
staternents secuon of our report We are
independent of tne Group N accordance with the
ients that are relev
the financial statemerts in the UK ncluding the
FRC's tthical Standard, and we have fulhlied our

ethical requirer

other ethical responsibilifies in accordance watn

these requirements

N 4‘K\h

art to our audnn of

We believe that the aud 't evidence we heve
ostained is sufficient and appropriae to
basis for cur ooinicn,

Conclusions relating to going concern
in auditing e inancal statements, we gve
concluded that the directors use of the going
concern bass ©F accountng in the preparaticn of

the financial staternents 1s appropnae

Sased on the work we have perfermed, we have

not dentiied any materiai uncerfaintias relating o

events or concitions that, individually or collectively,
ray cast significant doubt on the Group and Parerit
Company's ab ity to o

‘ora perod of twelve montns frorm when the

rtinue as a A’"H"lg corcern

financial statements are authorised for issue.

Cur responsibilines ana the responsibilities of
the directcrs with respect to going concern

ara described r tre relevant sectiors of this

repcrt However, because not all future everits or
condidions can be predicted, this statement is NoL &
guarantee as to the Groun's akility 1o continue as

going concern

Other information

The other information com
incluged in the anrual report, other than the

orises the information
financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon The directors are responsibie for the otner
information contained within the arnual report.

Qur opimon on the inancial statements does not
cover the ather informaton and, except 1o the

erwise explicitly stated 1 tnis report, we

do nat exprass any form of assdyrance conclusion
thereon

ur respossbility 1§ to read the other infor
Our respo-bility 15 to read the oiher information

and, in doimg so, consider wnether the other
mrermation 1 materially nconsisient with the

fnancial statements o our knowledge obtained n
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

the course of tine audit o ctherwize appears (o be
materialy musstated If we wwenufy such matenal
inconsistericies or apparent material msstaternants,
we are reguired to determime whetrer this gives rise
to a marerial misstatement ir the financal

errselves if, bated on the work we
rformed, we conclune that there sa

= other informat on, we

are reguired 1o repert that face

We have nothing 1o report in this regard.
Opinions on other matiers prescribed
by the Companies Act 2008

In our oomon, hased on the work undertaken ir

the course of the audit

« the nformat on given in the Strategic report and
trie Directors’ repert “or the financia. year for

which e firancial statements are prepared 1s

consistent witn fne financial statements, anc

« he Strateg.C report and Tirecte 215¢
oeern pregared N accorcance with applaate
egal requiremreants

Matiars on which we are requived to
report by excepiion

‘nthe . ght of the «nowledge ana understarding of
the Grouo ana the Farent Comcany ard its

he course of the audit,

aterial missiatemenis in

ery ronmert ohlained L
we have Not identfied m

the Strateqic report o Direciors’ report

We have neihirg o report in respect G the

rewat on to which the

following matters n
Companies Act 20C6 requires us 1o regort t¢ you f

N cur opinoT:

» adeqguate accounting records have

or returns aceguate for oo audit have ot ceen

receved from grancnes not visited by U3, ¢

« carfan disclosares of Directors remunerar on
Be d

» we rgve not rece ved ad tne informaticn ard
exclznanons we require for cur aucit,

Responsibilitiag of divecto

As explamed more
resnonsinilities siatermrent set out ©

30 the Lirecwors are respons ble “or the pregarat on

fully in tre Directars'

voages 29 ard

of the francial staterments and for being satished
that they give a true and far view, and for such

nzernzl control as the Deractors determire g

~ecesiary to enacle the preparaton of financ
statements trat are free from material

Tisstatement whether due to fraud or 2rror

tne Group's and the
iS5 & gong
ed
cencerr

iGters red
tc gong concern and Jsing the gong
bas.s of accountng unicss tne Directors ¢ tner
ntend to liowdate the Groug or the Parent
Corppany or 10 C2ass Gperalons, o have no

rezlst.o glternatve bot 1o do so

fuditor's responsibilities for the sudit
of the fnancial statemen

Qur chjectives ae o obta:n reascrable assura-ce
acout whether
are free from material misszatement, w‘merher dle
to fraud or e7ro”, an

Q.
‘
Q
@
3
1Y
D
)
3
U
c
o
g
[
—
D
e
Q
ol

that incluges cur opirion Reasoratle assurance s
a ~igh leve. of assurance, bul is not a guarantes that
an adolt conaucied 1n accordarce win 5As5 (LK)
wil always detect 3 matena. rrisstatem

ex:sts Misstatemenis can ar
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Expianustion as to what extent the
audit was considered capabls of
detecting rregularities, including
fraud

Irregularines, including fraud, are nstances of non-
compliance with .aws and regulations. We design
proceaures ir lne witt our responsibilities, cutined
above, 1o detect regulanities, including fraud. The

risi of not detectin al misstaterment due to

gamatera
fraad 1s higher thar the risk of not detecting one
resclting from error, as fraud may involve celbearate
concealment by, for exampie, forgery or ntenticnal
misreprasentations, or inrcugh collusion The
exzent 1o wh.ch our procedures are capatie of
stectng irreguarites, Incucng fraud is detaied
be-.ow However, the primary responsibility for tre
preventicn and detection of frawd rests with bath
trose charged with governance of the entity and

rmanagement
apprcach was as foliows:

« We obtaired an understandirg of the legal and
reguiatory frarmeworks that are appivcabi.e o tre

Group ard detarmined that the st significant
are trose that relate o reporting frar'r\ework (FRS

102 and the Companies Act 2006).

» We undersicod how Fern: TraZing Linited 18
cormplying with those framewaorks by mak-ng
enquires of managerrent, thase charged with

governance and tnose responsiple far legal

and compliance procedures as to any fraud risk
framewcrk witnin the entity, inciuding whetner
a formal fraud sk assessrnert s completed. We

corrcberated our enquirnes through review of the

following docurentatan or cerformance of the

following precedures:

+ gbtainirg ar ur'.dersta
contrals and —o

mcmg of entity-level
ng tae influence of the
onrol environmemt;

« obtaning an understancing of policies andg
procedures in place regarding cormpliarce
with laws and requlations, including how
compliance with sucn policies is moniored
ard enforced, obtaning an undesstanding of
management's process for identfying ard
responding to fraud risks, incl rg crograms
dress risks

rcvent dr:tcr and

ard controis estabished to ac
idertified, or otherw'se o
getect fraud, and how senior managerment

monitors those programs and controls:

+ review of board rmeeting minuies in
and up ta date of signing.

the perioc

« We ascessed the susceptibiity of the Group's

firancia: statements t¢ matenal misstatemert,
ncluding now fraud might occur oy holding a

discussicn within the audit tearm wirich included:
idertificat on of reiated paries;

= understanding tne G
control environment and asiesang the :nherens

Geoup's bus ness, the

r.sk for relevant assertiors at the significant
account level including discussicns with

manageme~t to gain an understaraing of
f the financial s
were susceptible to fraud, as identified by

mnose agreas raternents which

rnanagement, and

+ cons dered the coritrols that the Group has
establisred (0 address risks identfed Dy
The entity or that othe w se seck to prevent,
eler or detect fraud including ganing an
ndersramdmg of the entity level contrals and

policies that the Grour applies

+ Based on this understanding we designed our
audit procedures to ([dentfy nion-compliarice
with such laws and regulations Qur orocediures

involved test:ng of Journa: entries through

sournal analytics tools, with focus on manual

G sabiiuragn g 3““2.:
demisdages
i1

e *%%%izm“’i&}
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

A

journals, large or unusual transactions, or journals
meeting our defined risk criteria based on our
understanding of the business, tested accounting
estimates for evidence of management bias;
enguiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could affect the financial
statements; and inspecting correspondence,

if any, with the relevant licensing or regulatory
authorities.

further description of our responsibilies for the

audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

L e 13 a0t Tamilees?

This report is made solely to the Company's
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company's members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have farmed.

i &% Z\L_L_P

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory
Auditar

Belfast

20 December 2022
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4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 20 JUNE 2022
Liroup profit and loss account for the yaor ended 302 June 2022

2022
Nota £000

[restated)
2021

£Q00

b B % B R R FE B k2D SRR EE Y B Mk K rp b hm e 10R RS FEBE u hr i n b B

Turnover 1 711,830

Cost of salas (410,883)

Gross profit 300,947
Administrative expenses (258,251)
Operating proﬁtl(loss)- o S N 42,696 -
Other noome 1 3,550
Ircome from ofher fixed asset vwestments 5.249
Share of operatng profit in joint verilure -
Proft or aisposal of subsidanes and ,oirt veriure 8 29,533
Otner interest recavable ard svnar income £ 130
Irterest payatzle and similar charges
pfoﬁt/([oss)before Cxation T s 47,604
Tax on proi/ioss) 7 {16,294}

i

Profit/(loss) fof the financialyear 31,310

Attributable to Fern 37,932
Minority interest

31,310

{6.622)

B3554)

425,202

(22L.277)

204,025

(231,844)

(27,819
9,454
449
1755
28,565
997

L0

(22.663)
(8,349}

(27.005)

(4,007)

(31.012)

(36,067}

All resuits relate (o contnuing activities Mote 26 detans the prnor penod adpasiments.

Group statement of comprahensive income for the vear ended 30 June 2022

2022
E'000

(restated)
2021

£000

A AT 5k € R R A A S e S S A L e e S S e R A s s ey

Profit/(loss) for the financial year ‘ ‘ 31,310

Other comprehensive income

Movemerits in cash flow hedges 77,985
H \/‘(
Other comprehensive income for theyear 96,546

For

Igr exchange g:

Total comprehensive income for the year 127,856

Attributable to
» Owners of the parent 134,478

ontrolling interests

oss) o retrarslationr of subsidianes 18,561

44983
(333)

(31.012)

44650
13,638
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4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNI

Growup balance sheet a3 at 30 June 2022

lrestated)
2022 2021

Note £'000 £000

FUTER IR g vt d . FECIR - B w et w % e s S 2 b e IR 0 I 4 O S S A R

leed assets

o

557,708 576,739
Tang ple assets e 1,893,430 1581682
10 35,452 11,000

Intangicle ascets

Investmen

Current assets
Stocks 17 184,479 44 711

Dontors inciuding £138m 2327 F16.0my; 13 623,161 598,002
dua after more than cne vear)
C ash ar hank 3rd " fi &g 11 256 415 172 478

Cred;tors amounts falilng due W|th|n one year e (256 152) €ZO2 059)

Net current assets o 807 903 663, 13?

Total assets less current llabllmes 7 7 3 294 493 2 8"32 “33 h

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 15 (992 425) f907 339‘

Provisions for liabilities 1.7‘“ (82 620) (41 372‘

Net assets 2,219,448 1887847

2486590  21504n1

1 064, 055 ' 865 191

Capital and reserves

Called up share capiial 14 161,662 149676
Share prermiurm accourt 364,882 173,118
Merger rezerve 1,635,569 1,440,257
Casn flow nedne reserve 63,006 (14.579)

ZH ard 10sz accoLnt e (2,770) 7 136,049

Totat shareholders’ funds 2 222 349 1884121

Non-controlling interests {2, 901) 3721

Capital employed S 2,219,448 1887842

Note 26 detais tne prior penod ad.usirments,

These consclidated financial statements on pages 35 to 32 were aporoved by the Joard of crreciors on

16 Secemtber 2022 and are sigrned or ther cehal by.

PS Latham
Director
Regictered number 12601636
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Company balance shest as at 30 June 2022

2021
OO

F]x;(;asse”;s LA A e . S bttt § ot et :
Investments 2,116,366

2.116,3
Current assets

Dettors 3 39,888 50,383
Cask at bane aorl e nard 11 6,422 1,522
46,310 51,206

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 14 (449) (22924}

Net current assets 45,861 28982

Total assets less current liabilities 2,585,839 2,145,348
Net assets 2,585,839 2,145 348

Capital and reserves

Catlea uo share caoita! 18 161,662 149,676
Shiare premium account 364,882 173118
Merger reserve 1,986,457 1,791,145
Rroft a0d 1058 acoount 72,838 31,409

Total shareholders’ funds 2,585,839 2,145,248

Tne Comznany has eected to take the exemphion Lnder section 408 of the Zompanies Act 2006 not to
-

present the Cormpany proft and loss account The groft for the financial penod dealt witn in the financal

~ i

statements of the Company was £236,742. 000 (2021 loss of £157.504 060}

These financat staternents on pages 3510 92 were approved by the Board of directors on 16 December 2022
and are signed on therr pehalf by

PS Latham
Cirector

Begisterad rumber 1260163

o
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Group statemant of changes in eguity for the year ended 30 June 2822

Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controliing employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest {restated)
{restated) (restated) funds
(restated)
‘000 £000 £'000 E'000 E'000 E"000 £000 £000
Bzlanc2 aw a - - ) 7 . 1+ ge T _ _
3197 (a8 srared) 138435 - 1635569 63,837} (41188 1668982 Q570 1.678.552
Pror peroc . .
A Lslrerts ot 24) - - B 3875 13,828 17703 - 17703
138435 - 535,565 {59,562} (27356 1688685 2570 1696255
55 for the finar cal
Lose for the finarci - - - - 27005 (27005 @007 (31012
Changes in rearket o o o 7
vawe of - - - 44983 - 44,983 - 44,983
hedges (e
Fforegn ex
_ - - - (333 1333 -

- - - 44583 {333 44650 -
- - - 44,983 {27,335 17645 {4,007; 12638
Non cortrollng
irrerest ansmg or - . - - 1831 1831 842 (11
=5S COMoIngt o
- - 1155.212) - 195,322 - - -
11685 173,118 - - - 184,803 - 184,803
1444; - - - (6,399 (6.843) - {6,843}
200" (reataran, 145,675 173118 1440257 14,979} 136,049 1884121 3721 1,887.842
Balance as at
1 July 2021 {restated) 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 {14,979} 136,049 1884121 3,721 1,887,842
Profit for the
financial year - - - - 37,932 37,932 (6,622) 31,310
Changes in marhet
value of cash flow - - - 77,985 - 77,985 = 77,985
hedges
Foreign exchange
less on retransiation - - - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561

of subsidiaries
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Called up Share Merger  Cashflow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest
funds
E'Q00 £000 £°000 £°000 £000 E'000 £'000 £000
Other ]
comprehensive - - - 77.985 18,561 96,546 - 96,546
income/{expense} for
the year
Total comprehensive
income/{expense} for - - - 77.985 56,493 134.478 (6,622) 127,856
the year
Utilisation of merger _ _ 195,312 - (195,312) - - -
reserve
Sharesissuedduring @811 086 191,764 - - - 203750 - 203750
the year -
Batance as at
30 June 2022 161,662 364,482 1,635,569 63,006 (2,770} 2,222,349 (2,901) 2,219,448
Note 26 detalls the prior perod adjustmerts
Company statement of changes in equity for the yvear ended 30 June 2022
Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’
capitat account acecount funds
) £000 E'QQO ) £000 E’QQO £'000
Balance at incarparation - - - - -
Loss for the financial year - - - 1157.504) 1157,504)
Utilisation of merger reserve - - (135.312) 195,312 -
Totat comprehensive Income - - (195,312} Z7.808 157504
Shares issued during the year 150,220 173,118 1586457 - 7 2309695
Shares cancelled during the year 444 - 6.359) .- o ,(6,843j
Balance as at 30 June 2021 149,676 173,118 1,791,145 31,409 2,145348
Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 236741
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 {195,312} N : ER g -
Total comprehensive income e - 195,312 41,429 o ..236,741“ !
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - S 20?_:,750 1
Shares cancelled during the year - - - - e -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,986,457 72,838 . 2,585,839

i
|
i
|
i
|
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4] FINANC

Group statement of cash flows for the vear ended 30 June 2022

restated)
MNoe 2022 2021
£'000 E'000

Cash flows from operatmg actwmes

Frofitftioss) for the ananaia, year atirbualb e 10 the owrers of the parent 37,932 (27.0058]
Adjustments for:
Tax on proftfloss) 7 16,294 £.349
Interest recenvable and siisiar iIncorne € (130) (997}
interest payanle and nther sirniar charges 6 33,554 36,068
Prof t on disposal of subsidianes and jont ventare 2 £29,532) (28,568}
Income from jcint venture - {1,755}
Income rom fxed gsset investments {5,249) {449
Arnortsation arg imparment of rtang 8 45,762 37704
Depreciannan of langible hxed 353613 9 101,802 84,697
~Non cash staff costs 3,040 8,875
Movernents on derivatives and foregr exchange (18,044) (19788}
TICIEEse 1IN 100k (19,829) 15,701
(Increasel/decrease n debtors 31,022 243,574
increasefdecroasal n wreditors {173,956) 6.871
Nor -contralirg interests Y] {6,622) (4,607)
Tax recelved/ (paid) 25,853 (1 751)
Net cashg erated from operatmg;tr:rt”lwtles ST mnmm‘ﬁ 567 T 341 917
Cash flows from mvestmé;e&wtles S e 7
Purchase of sLibs diary ungertakings et of cash acquired (52,377) 1221,987)
Sale of cupsidary undestakings ana g venture 101,778 34,503
Purchase of tangible asses {322.,446) (110457}
Parchase of intangibie assers (7,222) 875)
Purchase of unisted investrents (124,203) (23.517)
Sae of unlisted Invegirents 13 105,000 20,133
Interest rece voed 130 997
Imcomf— form joint venrure - 1,077
Net cash used |ﬁ mvestlné actlwtles S M(2M9m"9m3m40) o (306 426)”7
Cash flows from financing activities 7 o 7 . T N
Proceeds from finarcarg 201,719
interest pa.d (32,319} 135552)
Repayments of ananc g (32,013} (212,676)
Proceeds “omr share issue 14 203,750 184,359
sha-es 18 - {6.399)
Net cash generated from ﬁnancmg actmtles D ) 341 137 (%O.Zéé)
Net (decrease)lmcrease in cash and cash equwralents” o “ 93 694 ~ {1-34,5?7';"
Cash ard cash equivalents at the begirning of rhe year 1 172,478 206,683
ExChange gans or cash ana cash enu va. o o 54.’: - 367
Cash and cash equivalents a;tl;e end of the year 1: o 7256,415 777777777777 172478

Note 26 detal s the onicr penod ad ustrents

w
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information

Fern Trading Limited (the Company'} is a private company amited Gy shares and incorporated on 14 May

2020 The cormgpany is dom'ciled in England, the Unitea Kirgdom and reg stered urder corrparty nurrber
2601636, Tre address of the registered office is at &th Floor, 33 Roloorn, Londor, England, ECIN 2

=

Statement of compliance

Tre Grodp ard ndividual finac.al statements of Fern Trading Limited have been prepared in cormphance
with Un'ted Kingdom Accounting Siandards, including Financial Reporung Standard 102, 'The Fonancia,
Leporing Stardard applicabe n the Jrwed Kingdorn and Uie Repubac of Efﬁgd”‘(i {'FRS 1027 and the
Corparies Act 2006,

Basis of preparation of financial statements
“he franaal staternents have been orepared on @ going concern basis, undear the hstorcat cost convent'on,
as rredihied by the recogniton of certain financial assets and liaciities meatured at fai value, and in

Q

accordance wih the Companies Act 2000 end apol cabe accounting standards ir the United Kingdom. The

o
princigal accounting policies, wh.oh have beer apolied consisertly throughout the year, are set oot telow

Tre consoldatec firancial statemerts include the results of alf subsid aries owned by Fern Trading Limited
listed in note 25 of the annual financia: statements Certain companies of these subsidiaries, whoh are

hsted in note 29, have taken the exenption frorm an aud for the year ended 30 June 2022 permitied by

secticn 479A of Companes Act 2006, in order 1o allow these subsichanes to taxe the aud:t exernpticn, the

parent comoany has given a siatutory guarantee, in line with section 479C of Comparies Act 2006, of all

the cutstanding ret lab ities as at 30 June 2022,

Going concern

The Group’s ana the Company's bus.ness activities, together with the factors likey o affect its future

developrnent, performance and posé:ion are sat cut the Strategic Report on pages 4 to 14, Tne financial
position of the Group, its cash fiows, ligu'dity positon and borrowirg facilities are described n the firancial

review on pages 23 o 27 The princ.pal risks of the Groun are set out on pages 16 o 19,
The Directars perform an annuat going cancern rev'ew that considers the Group’s ability to mestts

financial obliganons as they fal. due, for a period of at least twelve months after the date that the financia.
staterments have been sigred

Cue to the chailerging market condimions ma ag ement have performed an aszessment (o determing
whether there are any materia. Jncertainties arising that could cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group o canbinue as a going concern. Na sigrificant issues have been ncted and as a consequerce, the
directors believe that the Group 3 well placec to manage 3 busingss risks successfully despite the current
URCerta:n conomic outcox

i
&
/iy
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.

Statement of accounting policies

I reac~ing this conclusion the Directers Pave reviewed the financis! impasct of the urcertanty on the
Group's nalarce sheet, proft and loss and cash flows witn specific consideratior gven 1 tne falowing:
A reverse stress test was performed on the base case forecast 1o ascertain what scenanos would result in

risks 1o the Grouns hguidity pasition, The test showed even in an unlikely scenar.o of a2 significant regucticn
cf revenus of 446

%, the Group s able 1o sustan its currert operational costs and meet all habilites as they fall
due for at ieast 2 year from the date of signirg these inagncial staterments when atibeing the avaiable
facitities within the Group

The Group has a nurmber of Anzncing facilites that contain covenants reguiring the Group to rmairtain
specified finarcial ratics and comply with certa-n other financial covenants. Treze financal coverants are
tested at least quarterly, and. at tre dae of s report, tne Group ‘s in compt:ance witn all its financeal
covenan:s. Stress tests on reasonably piausitle scenaros such as a significant reduct:on in EBIT DA of 84%

over time have been used Yo assess the coverant reguirements for the at least the next twelve morth: and

ail covenants nave been forecast to bo met even under the stress test scenano, N the go nig concarn penad.

T30 June 2022, tre Growp nad avalgble cash of £256m and headroor avalabie of £447 1 including 3
rﬂ»ol\f\"‘g cradit fac ‘U?y of £210m Dept of 588”@ is due o mature 1n less tharn on

of £956m payacln 1in
set out in hote 16 Loars and Borrowings

e year, witn the rermairder
5 and Jndrawr ariounts are
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Key accouniing juagereant and estimates have peen made with consideration gven 1o the currest
economc outlook. Key estimates irclude 'can recoverability valuation of work in grogress,

decomrssioning provisions, imparment of goodwil and investments, business combinat o

and henge

accounting Detatls are set out on pages 50 to 51

Baseo o the above assessment of current eccnomic conditions ard the impact on the Group's francial
poz:tor, lguidity and financia. covenants. tha directos have concluded tnat the Group and Comzany 7as
acequate resourcas to o uR 1t operatcnel existence for the next 12 months Thus, they conunue to

.
acopt the gomg concerr basis of accocunitrg rn presarng e anauat inancial staternants

Exemptions for gqualifving entities under FRS 102

FRS 102 auows a cualify'ng ertity certain disclosure exemptons, subect to certain conaloons, which nave
ceen complied with, incled ~g nouficaticn of, and no o ection to, the use of exemotiors by tne Company’s
shareholders

The Company Fas ta<en advantage of the foilcwing exernphons

nat it a qualifying entity and the consolidated
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flows, ncluded in trese f-ancal staternents, nciuzed the Comoary's cast flows,

! Pl

linsTrar-ent discicsdres, recuied unger FRS 102 parasrashs 2139 10 11 48A and

orrnator s provided in the conso mated ra-cial staternert

from disclosin e Company key managen ent CErsSnne. Cormpersation, at regu ren oy FRS 102

~g

paragrapn 33
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Statement of accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

Tre consolidated Francial staterents include the resutis of Fen Tradirg Limited and all its sunsiciary
drdertangs made up o the same accounting date Al intra-group balances, transact ons. income and
expenses are el mirated in full on consolidatior The resalts of subsiciary unde<wakings acqured or disposed
of during the pernod are ncluded or excluded from tne income statement from the effective date cf
acguision or dissosal

Al undertakings over which the Group exercises contral, being tre power to govern the 9dnancial and
operatirg poacies so a5 to obtan benehis from tharr activities, are conselidates as sidiary undertakings
VWhnere a subsidiaty has different accounung ooiicies o the Group, adjustments are made 1o nose

-
x,-
subsicary firancaal staternents (o apply the Group's acoodntng policies wner prepanng tne consol datec

financial statements.

Any sunsidiary urderiakings or associates sold or acquired durna the year are incuced up to, or from, the
dates of change of contrel or change of signficant influerce respectively

Yhere the Group nas wr.tter a put oonon over snares held by 3 non-controling interest, the Group
derecngnises the nor-controiling interest and iNstead recognized contingent deferred cons deration sability
within other payables for the estmated arnaunt likety to be paa to the non-conroling interest on exercise
of those optors The residua: amount, repraserting the difference betweer any consideration paid/payabie
and e non-controlling interest’s share of net assets, is recognised as gaodwill. Movements in the
estirmated labilty after inital recogniticr are racogrised as goodwill.

Forgign currency

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Group financial statements are preseated ir pound sterting and rounded to thousands

The Company's funchional and presentaticn currency is pound sterlng and rounded (o thousands

ii. Transactions and balances
Fareigr currency ransact:ons are translated nio the functicnal currency using the spot exchange rates at
the dates of the trarsaciions. At each pericd end fore’gn currercy monetary fems are trarslated using the
clozing rate. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are transiated using the exchange rate at the
date of the transact.orn and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured us ng the exchange
rate when fair value was determined, Fore gn exchrange gains ard «osses resulting fram the settlement of
transactiors and from the translaion at penod-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liaoitties
denommnated in foreign currencies are recogrised in the orofit and loss accourt

Al foreign exchangs gains and 03s&s are presented in the profit ard 0335 account within admiristrative
expenses’

iil. Translation

The trading results of Group undertakings are tranzlated into pounds stering at the average exchange rates
for the year The assels and liaciites of averseas undertaxings, Inciudirg goodwill and fair value agjustments
ansing on acquission. are transiated at the exchange rates ruling at the year-end Exchange adjusiments
arising from the retranslatinon of ocening net nvestments and from the transation of the arofs or losses

at average rates are recognisea 17 'Other comprehensive ncome’ and allocated to non-controlling interest

as appropriate
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Statement of accounting policies
Turnover
The Groun operates a number of classes of business. Revenue 1s derived by the “ollowmg

- Energy

gererated by sclar farms, wind gereratng ass

Turnover from the sale of elactn
olants and bromass and andfll sites s recognesed on an acon.als batis in the gerod inwh.oh s

gererated Revenue from long-term government backed offiake agreemenits, sLon as the Renewabie

Opligahion Certifcation (°F er
sale of fertilbser by biomass and landfid businesses s recognised or phiysca. dispateh,

+ Healthcare
Turnaver is recognised wher the significant risks and rewards of owrership of retrerent properties have
pasced to the buyer (o legal completion;, (e amount of revenue can ce recognized relab.y, and itss
probabie that the economic benefiis associated with the transact-on w ki fBow to the entty Tur-over
s recognised at the fair valug of the consdeqat'on received “or heglthicare services prov ded in the norma.
course of busiress, and 1s shown net o VAT Turnover is recognised based o ine date the service s

oroviced

« Lending
Turnover regresents arrangemert fees and irterest or loans prov ded w customers, net of any value
addea tex Loar interestis recognized ¢ ar accrual 0asis in ine with conractual terms of the loar

agreement. Arrangement fees are spread over the life of tne ioan o wrick they relae.

« Fibre
Turnover s recogrised at the far value of the corsidereucn received for irternet cornacty ity and relaed
IT services provided in the norma. course &F business, and 15 showr net of VAT Turnover 13 recogn sed

pased on the dae the service s proviced

T

fouse sullding

Turnaver s recognized on leqal completior of the sale of oroperty,
s

fard and cormmercal soaces. Turnover

recagnised by re‘erence to the value of work completed as a
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ii. Defined contribution pension plan

eq coentipunan olan g a pension Dan wneer which tre Grodp pays fikeo conriguhions inio a2
senarate entty Orce e coninbutiors have oeen pad tne Lroup —as ro furtrer payrrent otligatons
The cortnbLnons ae recogrised as ar exgense whan trey are due. Amcurts ~of paid are $mown n

coroels imthe calance sheest The assess of the pian are peld separaely from tne Group v irdesendanty
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Statement of accounting policies

iil. Share-based payments

Casnh-settied share-tased payments are measured at far value at the balance sheet date. The Group
recogrises a babiity at the balance sheet date based on these fair vaiues, taking inio account the eshimated
numo2r of units that will actually vest anc the current proporton of tne vesing period

Changes in the value of this lakility are recognised nthe mcome siatermnent
The Group has no equity-setiled arrangements.

Finance costs

Finance costs are charged to the profit and loss account over the term of the debt using the effectve

nterest metnod so that tre amaours charged s at 2 constant rate on the carrying amount. 2sue costs are
Initialy recognised as a reducucn in the proceeds of the assoc.ated capital :nstrurment anc releazed to the
profit aﬁd ioss account over tre term of the debt.

Currant and delerred tay

Tax. 1z recogniced in the staterment of Income and retaned earn.ngs, @xcept that a change atiributable 1o an
rmoof incomre ard expense recogrised as other comprehensive Incorme or to an item recogrised directly

ir equity is 230 recogrisec N other comprenensive income or directy 1 eguity resgectively.

Tne current Imcome tax charge iz calculated or the basis of tax rates and laws tnatl have been enacted or
substantvely eracted by the balance sheet date in the counres where the Company oterates and

aenerates income.

Geferred baances are recogn'sed in respect of al timing differences that have originated but not reversed
by the Balance sheel date, except that

« The recognton of defered tax assets s Imited 10 the extent that it iz probatle tnat they wll be recovered
against the reversal of deferred tax liabiities or otrer future taxable pronts, and

Any deferred tax balarces are reversed if ana wher ali conditions for retaning associated tax allowances

have been met.

Ceferred ax balances are not recognised in respec: of permanent differences except in respect of business
combrnations, wnen deferred tax is recogrized on the differences between the far values of acse acoulred
and tne futlre tax deductions avatabe for them and the diferences betwesn the far values of lia 25
acquired and tne arrount that wil be assessed for tax. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws
that have Deen enacted or substantively enacted oy the balance sheet date.

Business combinations and goodwill

Busress combinations are accounted for by applyirg the purchase metnod.

Tre cost of a busness combinauon is the farr value of the corsideraton given, :iahilities incurred or
assumed and the equity instruments ssued plus the costs directly attrbutable 1o the business combination
Where control 3 achieved r stages the cost s the consideration at the date of each transaction

On acguisiton ©f a business, fair values are attributed to the 1dentifiable assets, lizbiliies ard contingert
Labilities unless the fair value carnot be measdrac reliably, in which case the value is incorporated as
goodwill. Where the fair value of contingent liabitties cannot be relizbly measurad they are disclesed
on the same basis as cther contingent Gabilities
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Statement of accounting policies

Goodwill recognised represents the excess of the fair val.e and dire

consideralior over the far vaiues o Ire Group's interest in tre identifiable net assets, labittes and

contingent Lablites acaurred

On acquisiion, goodwill 1s al ocated 1o cash-gensratng units {CGL'ST mat are exp
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the combinat on.

Goodwill 1s amaortised aver s expacted useful ife whicn g determined based on tne estimated sfespan of
the assets acaured Where the Group 1s unak.e to make a reliaible estimate of usefd! lfe, goodwili s
amorised over a pernod not exceeaing ten years Goodwill 15 reviewed and aszessed for imparment
ndicators on an annual pasis and any imparrrent 1s chargea to the orofit and loss

Tangibie fixaed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated 3

t
off the cost of fixed aszets, less therr estmated residual vaiue, over their exgected Jseful lives, Deoracation
r the date a~ azset 1s brougrt 'ntc <ervce. Land and assets in the course of constructor

cost less deprecianon. Depreciat.on 15 provided &t rates calcuaied o wrte

commences fron
are not deprecated. "he estimated useful iives are as follows

and and buildings

Aszsets in the course of constructon are stated at cost. These assets are rot depreciated untic they are

Where factors, such as technowgica, advancement or cnanges 17 market crice, maicate trat residuzl vaie
~useful life have chamg@d. the residual value, useful ife or deprecation rate are amended prospec:iveiy (o]
msiances. The asses are reviewed for impairment (f the above factors indicate that tne

ng and wwsses on disposals are ceiermired by comparing the proceeds with the carryng amount and are
recognised within profit or loss.
intangible assets

Intangiole assets are 3123\6":1 at cost less accumulated amoriisation and accumuiated immpairmen: losses,
Amcrusation s calcuated, using the straght-lire m@*l"uu, w allocate the ceprecable arrcunt of ke gssets

o thelr residual vaies over their estimated useful ives, as follows:

Armcriisat on expenses are included in agmir strat ve expensas

Deveogment fignis 7elate to planni~g consent o build a soia farm and a wind farm acquired or acausto

i
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Statement of accounting policies

Whnere factors, such as changes in mrarket price, ngicate that residual va.e or useful Ufe Fave changed, the
residual value, useful life or amartsanon rate are arrended prospectively to reflect the new crcumstances.

The aseals are reviewed for impairment It the ahove factors indicate that the carrying amaount may
be impared.

Leases

At incepuon the Group assesses agrearrants that transfer the right 1o e assats. The assessment considers

whether the arr rment s, or contairs, a lease based on the substance of the arrangermert and whether
e

arge
e lease should be classified as ether a finance lease or an operating leasze

Leases of assets tnat transfer substantially al the risks and rowards inc.dental to ownerstip are classified as
[ iNnarce .£ases are Capitaiised at the commencement of t

ine lease st the fair value of
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leased asset and depreciated over the shorter of the ezse term and the estimated useful Ife of the aszel
Assets are aszessed *or impa rmert at each reportirg date,

Leases that do not transfer all the risks and rowards of ownersnip are classified as operating leascs
Paymients under oerating feases are charged to the profit and loss account or a straigrt-ine basis over the
pernad of the lease.

Investments
The Company holds invastments in 2 subsidary at cost less accumulated impairmeant tosses. i an
impairment (0ss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of tre investrient is increased to the revised

ast mare of its recoverable amount, but only 1o the extent that tne revised Carrying armaount does not exceead
the carryirng amount tnat would have been determined had no impairmens loss been recogrnised in prior
pericds Areversal of ar impairment losg i recognisec in the profit and ioss account,

Cash

Cash includes cash in hand and deposits repayabte on gemand. Restrictad cash represents cash for which
the Group does not nave immediate ana direct access or for waich reguiatory or legal reguirements resinct
the use of the cawn

Stocks

Raw materials, spare parts and consarrables are vatued at the lower of cost and net realicable valus, Where
necessary, a provision is made for obsoete, slow-moving ang defective steck. Cost is determined on tne
first-in, first-out {(FIFO) methad.

Fuet stocks (MBM and Utter) are valued on an average cost 0asis over one (o two months and provision for
unusable litter is reviewed monthly and applied to off-site stock,

rue. stock of straw has been valued at tra historical cost per tonne of straw. A provsion for unosable straw
is dent fieg on an individual stack basis ard s reviewed moninly, 5tocks are used on a first in, first out
("FIFO") basis by age of straw

acks of ash at Fibrophos are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value © the Group

Stocks of property development work in progress "WP'} are stated at the lower of cost and realisakle

et
tmateriais ango, where applicable, d'rect abour costs and tha verheads that

value, Cost comprises direc
have been incurred in brnging the stocks to therr present locaticns and condiucn.
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88 COsts o compete and s&iis rec
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Accrusd income

Accrued income on loans iz calculated at the rate of interest set out in the loan contracts Energy income 1=

accrued cver the penod in which L has been qenerated
Deferred income
Deferred 'ncome is recogrised in aCcordance with tne terms set out 'n re contact, Deferred reome s

refeased to the orofit and loss acoount 0 the geriod © whic

U i respect of inarcia. mstruments

1sh anc bank balances are mitialy
ites a Fnancirg transacuon, whars the

transacticn s mea at he present vaile of tne ‘.NM-« f‘:C:’lptS d:scounted at a markeat rate of interest
Sucn assets are supseguently carned at amorhzed cost using the effective inter

Atthe end of each repcing pernod inancal assets measurad at ama
evidence of rrparrment If ar
amaount and the nresent val.e of the estmsted cash flg

rate The irmparmrent loss iz rocognizad moproaft or (055
Other inarcia. assets, .dud:ng nyesimerts in eguity instrunents wihicn a
jointventures, are ntially measured at fat vaiue, whion s normrally the

subseqguently carmed at fair v aiue ang the changes 10 farr vaiue are re
investrmiens o equity instruments that are r ot put,‘ Cly traded ang wh

reliably are measured at cost less imparmen

Finarc al assets are derecognised when (2 the cortractual nghis to the cash f.ows from the asset expire or

itizlly 3il the risks ard rewards of the owmersh:p cf the asset are transferrec o
another party or lo) cortrol of the asse” has oeen transferred 10 another party whno nas the practeal anilty
unilaterally seh tre asset to an unrela

.—+

e b rd party weinout irposing additional restrichions

Financial liabilities

J wade and cther payables, bark loans, cars from fellow Growp comrpan es

eCiogr nsed g rariacton Brce, wniess arangement consiitutes &

ekt imsirurrent iz measurec a. the present value of the futurs recaiots
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Statement of accounting policies

Dest instrumenis are subzequently carried at armart sed cost, Lsing the eTeciive intarest rate meinod. Fees
paid on the establishment o loan fac ites are recognised as transaction Costs of toe loan o the extent that

itis probable that scme or alo of the facility will ke drawr down In this case, the fee is deferred uritil the
draw-down occurs o the extent there 1< no evidence that it s pronabie that some or ail of the facility will
be drawn down, the fes1s cagtal sed as a pre-payment for lauidity services and amortised over the period
of tae facility to which it relates,

Trade payables are cbligations w pay for goous or services that have beer rqmred N the ordinary course
of business from suppliers, Accounts payable are class “ed as current liacilit.es if payment is due within ore
year cr less If not, they are presented as non-currert habilties Trade payaties are recogrisad initiglly at
transacton price and subsequerty measured & amorused ¢ us NG the effecuve interast method

Fnanciat liabilities are derecagnised when trne uab ity ¢ extinguishad, t1at is when the contractual colgat.on

is aischarged, cancelled or expires

Provisions

Provisiong are made where an event has taken olace that gives tne Group a legal or constructive abligation
that prokably requires settlemnent by a tranisfer of economic benefl and a rebagle estimate can be made of
thz amount of the obligaten,

Provisionz are chargea as an expense o the profit and loss account ir the year that the Group becomes
t

aware of the obligaton, and are measurad at the past estimaic at the balarce sneet date of the enditure

recuired 1o settle the obligat'on, taking o account relevant neks and uncertaintes.

Hadging

Tre Group applies hedge accounting for trarsacuons entered into to manange the cash flow exposures of
crrowmgs. Interest rate swans are held to manage the interes: rate exposures and are designated as <ash

owe medges of floaung qate borrowings Changes in the fair values of derivatives gesignated as cash flow

hedges, and which are effective, are recognised directly in equity Any ineffectiveness in the hedging
relationsrip [oeing the excess of the cumulative change ir far value of the hedging nstrurnent since
inception of the hedge over the cumuilative change in the far value of the hedged itern since inception of
e hedge) is recognised m e profit and [oss,

Thne ga:n or loss recognized in ciher comprehiensive income is reclassified to the profit end oss 1n
accordance with the cash flows of the kedged iterm. Hedge accounting s discontinued when tre hedqing
Irstrument exgiras, no lenger meets tne hedging criteria, the forecast transaction 1 no longer highly
probatle, the hedged debt instrumient is derecognised or the hedging nstrument is terminated.

Share capital

Ordinary sha-es issued by the Group are recogrised n eguity at the value of the proceeds received, with the
excess over nominal value oeing crecited to share pramium.

Mon-controlling interests

Mon-controlling interests are measured at thelr proport.onate share of the acquirge’s identfable net assets
at the date of acguisition

e
Firriiiamaridids
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Hey scocounting judgements and estimatses

The preparation of inancial stalements in comphance with FRS 102 requres the use of certain crit cal

accounting estimates |t alsc requires management to exercisa judgemenrt in appiying the Company's

accouning policies. Estirmates and judgernerts are cortinualy evaluated and are Lasen an ristoncat
8]

experience and other factors, mzluding expectatars of furure events that are believed 1«

under the crcuemsiances The key estimates and judgerants in prapar ng

i. Recoverabitity of loans and advances to customers (estirnate)

Loans and zdvances o customers, including associated ved meome balances, are revewed for
Impairmert on a guarterly basis. In considernng the need for a provision, management deterire their best
estimate of the expected futire cash flows 01 a Case by casa kasis. Az this estimate relies on a ce-tain

~umber of assumptions abou: future events which may differ from actua outcomes, includirg the

porrawver's ability 1o repay interest and capta due in future pericds, this 3'/@5 rse o judgement as to

winelrar therg w between the carying value and of the debtor valance

38 snor

Ma~ageTent nole mat provisions agairst loans and advances is & cruical estimate and have thersfore
parformed sersitviy aralysis on the provisior. Tne resuits of the sensitiviy analys s cor clude that a change
skowould have resutted
staferrent dunrng the period See note 13 for the
arrying amnourt, of the debrors and arovisions at 33 June 20272,

-/- ome per cent -n the amount provided against the est

]
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E3.6m tess/more expenciture baing charged to the 1inceme
C

ii. Value of property development work in progress (WIP') (estimate)

Property developrrent W P is reviewed for irr pairment o a pencdic bass it considenng the need for 2
Lrovision, rmanageme-t astermine their best estimate of the recoverable value. Mamaqpmem: erngage ar
expe-t external valuer to provide key assumptors zoout future events which r differ from actual
outcomes. inciuding progerty valuat o7s, rate of sales and developrnent cosis

These estimates glve rise (0 ;udgement 53 10 whether there 5 a shortfall between the carrying value ard the

5
fair vaiue of the talarce as at the 30 Zune 2=J2"‘. PosT year enc, management Fave reviewed ke

)
)
=

nphions Lsed to detérmina the vaiwe of property development WIP and rave observed ro changes in
L]

performance that wolld impact the valuatior as at the 20 Jure 2022 Ses rote 12 for the carry'ng amount

f

of the property cevelopmen: WI2

. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities) (judgement)
The Grour owns two energy generating sutsimaries in Austral.a which have entered nio curchase sl
agreements [PPA%) in 2029 and 2027 The PPA's nclude a contract for d’”.é!eﬂces 'CfD" whereby tne
subsidianes payfreceve gmounts fro..‘ tre custerrer based on “he differences betweer a fixed selung prce

and the aciual price for electr ity O the Australan erergy marker Tne directers believe the cortract 15
cutsoz the scope of FRS 102 secran 12 as 5 for the sale of & ﬂcn—frar‘h femand the O s typcal for
sLCh arrangemerts Trerefore it s beng ancounted for under FRE 102 sectior 23 a5 a reverue coriras with

Cle cons derat o) rather ran revaluing tre entre centract 1o fav YELE.
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Statement of accounting policies

v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)

The provision for decormrmissioning costs is measured at management's best estrnate of the nresent value
of the experditure reqguired 1o settle the future obiigat or to return land on which trere are cperauonal wind
and solar farms to its origiral conaition. The tavel of tne provisions 15 determined to 2 significant degree by
tne estimaton of future d.smanting and restoration costs, as well as the tmng of dismantiement

Wind Farms (estimate):

Management note that decommussioning provisons s a oriica estirmae and rave trerefore performed

o

sensilivity anaidysis. The resu.ts of the senstvity analysis conclude tnat a crange ¢° +';‘"‘ one per certin the
discount rate wauld have resulied in E2.1m ircrease/decraase in tne provision. Ses note 17 for the provision

;1\

recogrised at 30 June 2022 Managemen: utiise external expertize 1o provide an estmated cast 1o
dizmante ard have used a discoun: rate of 2% to reflect the time in value of money ard the rzks specific
W tne ocbligator.

Australian solar farms {judgement):

Tne Greup iz reguirea o restore the leased pramises of the solar farm to ther ecngnal conamuon at tne ena

of thie lease terrm. A provision was previous'y recogrised, Nowever In the current year tiis Judgement has

been reassessed and maragement belizve the lessor may wish (o gither take title of the gsseis for eltner

contirded use or 1¢ realise vaue through selung the assets and as such do rot believe that an outflow =3
tQ

probabie Sﬂ‘tt tnis restoration obdigation.

UK Solar {estimate):

Durng the year, a tnrd party performed an assezsment of the base cost of the decommissioning of the
Groups JK solar farms Tne findings have resulted in matenal ¢han g 17 the cost estimate and therefore a
provision has beer recagnised for the first trme on sorme sites The impact has resdlted in a provision beng
raised for £38m 1o the balance sheet decom 'msmomr‘.g hzbility and fxed assets. As at 30 Sune 2022 there 15
no rrpact on the prafit and loss Sites rot affected are addressed setow

UK and French Solar {judgment):
Management pelizve that given the nature of these particular assets, the (@s30r may wish to either take title

of the assets for either continued use or 1o realise value through selling trie assets and 35 sucn do not
Lelizve tnat an out®low 15 probable © settle this restorat:on abligatior. Management will cortinue to maenitor

the situation at each balance sheet date.

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments (estimate)
Tne value of goodwill held by the Group and investrnents in subsidiary undertak'ngs held oy the Company
15 reviewed annually for mparment Tre recoverability of these palances is considerad with refearence to the
present vaile of the estimated future cash flows. These calcuiations use cash flow projections which extend
forwarg forecast busiress Derr’ormance together with assumptiors surrounding the excected life of the
asset, externally prepared forecasts and valuations, and any adjustrments required to the discount rate to ke
ccount of busingss risk ~he estimated present value of these future cash flaws 15 sensitive to the discount
rate and growth rate usea n the ca:culat.on, at of which require management’s judcemen: Testing of the
carry'ng value has been perfcrmed during the year, which nas involved several scenanos beng mocelled.
Based on this testing and the resulling imparment recogrised on investments, managemeni oelieves there
1s sufficient neadroom to support the value of goodwill and iInvestments in subsdiary ent ties

Managemert rote that impairment of goodwil ard investments is a ¢ritical estimate and have therefors
performed sensitivity analys:s on the provision. The resulis of the sensitvity analysis conclude that a change
of +/- one per certin tne amount provided against the estimated balance at risk would have resulted in
F2.49rn less/more expenditure neing charged to the income staternent curing the period. See note 8 for
the carrying amoun: of the goodwill ang investmerts at 30 Jure 2622,
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Analysis of turnover by category

2022
£'000

2021
E000

Sabaitaoe

| ending el

wannm e ntTELEG ARExh BRI AMRERIE B BA% sas srsansa v oimow -

{;5 oo > e PP
Energy cperatons - olar, reserve oower and wird 365,958
Energy cperatans — biomass and lanchil 223,526
Healthcare opearatiors’ 45,978
Home pulding 25,034
e operations 8,930

56.552
179,820
141,826
42,266
4838
425,302

Ircluded i income from Healthcare operahans s £1/4rn (2021 £1L 2mi reiating 1o th
and 78 6m (2071 £ 31 1miin reiation (o services rendered,

T

Analysis of turnover by geography

2022
£000
Fiurope 84,433

Rest of weorld

711,830

e e e AAYRERS IR KGR Ay O e 0 o

23486 ,

sale of retirameant vilage unis,

2021

E000

384799
31893

Other income

2022
£'000

10w mxenn weeerea ete s derceferah 4 PRTHL 0 EERER X B 7 v 3o b ova

2021
£000

lau dated damages ancd insLra

3,550

G454
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

- SR N

Th's is stated after crargingdcrediting)

B RRD £ DB NP f VREEREY 16 VRARKE A PR AR AR T vk b raarn e s vara o 2 TS MY MTL MEAOCEOiemnus sy

Areornsation of intangible agsats (note £

Impairrrent of irmang ble assets incle 8)
Depreciator of tangible asses rowe 9

Auciors remunerat on
financizw siatemerts

Company and tne Group’s consolidated

Aucitors remunerat.on — audit of Compariy's subsidisnes
Aucttors” rernunerat’an - non-audic services

Aumtors remunarat on - tax cormpliance services
Diference on fore g exzhange

Operating iease rentals

R PRERLRS S RS L A GRS R B a0t oun 00

101,802
45

819
246
482
7,772
13,783

{restated)
2021

37704

84697
146

1134
513
672

4402

/502 3

=
9]
]
T
™y
(o)

details the pror period adjusimerts

i

Wages aned calanas

Scciat security costs

Cther pens'on .o

ts

2022

85,432
7.041

3,233

/95,706

The Group provides a defined contribution schemes fo
an expense for the defined contribution scheme

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

is shown in the table above.

2022
Number

LB TIGRIE S SRS ¥ SR

Froducticn
Administrat or

Drrectors

its ermrpioyeas in the JK. Trhe amourt recognised as

2021

Nurnber

e s g

1,032
631
3

1,666

1050

The Comnpary had ons employee otner than Directors dunng the cencd

N

nded 30 June 2022 (2021 none).
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
£000 £'000
Srnoluments 176 163

During the year no cension conmbutons were made ir respec: of tne directors (2021 nonet

The Group has no othe key managemrent (2621 rone),

B oo e oo

A numrber of subsidiares of the Grouo operate a casi-settied LTIP to quad®ying employees, whereby

} ying Floy Y
errproyess render services in exchangs for cash, the amount of which i€ determ ned by reference o the
valuation of the underlying subsid ary The far vawe of the Lability for the awards made is measurea at sach

eporting date ard at the settiement date ne far vawe i recognised over tha vesing penod. Trea amount
cf experse rﬂr'ogmfed takez Into accourt the best availzble esturrate of e nurmber of units expected
vest under the service ard performance conditions underiyng each award granted

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

2022 2021
Number of MNurmber of
awards

BRI A

S bR

Cpening outsta~dng talance T T Y e1a,781 1,640,000
Pra durlr" ‘hg "ﬂ"\od 1,763 563 d747J1

Closmg outstandmg balance 3,678,314 1 914 751

e year was £3,133 000 (2021 El, 134,200) and at the 30 June 2022 there was &
neluded within creditors greater than one year (2021 £1 3340003

§ s

Interest receivable and similar income 2022 2021

£000 £000

@ AwEe¥ e RAGNDNArEee £ARRANBGRON RN LA B 5 S BN RON BT 6 DA A ST © s Y s s B ek U0 p v

130 9g7

Interest payable and similar expenses 2022 2021
£000 £000

[T2rCET O Barnk Dorrow: ng 5 32,192 34,378

Arnort saton of ssue Zois on ke Dorow Ngs 2,597 1,103
rFH/ ase or denvatve franoia nstrumients (1 235) 587

33,554 36,068
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
7o

a) Analysis of charge in year

{restated)
2022 2021
e e e . tas Che o wwmoa o cteaenane £'°0° F’OOO
s R O O O owibvitodbu U AN
LK corporation tax caarge or profitiloss) for the year (297) 1.648
Ad:ustmerts inrespect of ornior periods 3,196 {2,866]
Faren 5641 -
Torwrlrrurmnr tax char g (frnmt‘ S 8 540 R (1218W
Deferred tax:
Ongnathon a-< reversal of timing differences 6,227 2.074
AdLstmerts In respect of pror penads (3.741) {3.598)
Effect of change -~ tax rates 5,268 11,491
%@ta; dp(”w = o e et et ot e s s 5 <t s 8 o2 o 7'754 e 9567.”
Tak charge on profit/(loss) on ordinarj activitiés R o 16,294 84349

b} Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year 1s higher (2027 higher) tnan the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
19% (2021 19%). Tne differences are explained below:

{restated)
2022 2021
N R £'000 £000
P;-oml(‘ioss)befo;etax“‘m it Ao S 47;604 Sl
(loss) befara mut o star ate of
oot o e UKo 5% G000 155 3,045 022)
Effects of.
Expenses not deductible for rax purposes 11,723 16,076
Other effects (868) 1022
Inceme Not taxatle for tax purpases {8,102) (9,351)
AgiLstmen:s in respact of aror geriods {545} (6,865)
Ef"L ts of ’na. Yo i tax rates 5,041 11,4859
Totaltax charge for the year o V S - 7 16,294 ‘ 8,345

¢) Factors that may affect future tax charge

Tre Finance Act 2021 enacted on 10 Jurse 2021 increased the mam rate of UK corporation tax from 192 to
25%, effective 1 April 2023 Deferred taxes on the baiance sheeat have been measured at 25% (2021 25%)
which represents the future corporation tax rate that was enacted at the balance sheer date

MNote 26 deta ls the prior penod adjustments.
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T S

Software Gaodwill Develapment Total
(restated) rights
Group | gooo €000 E000 £000
964 726,602 10,216 737,782
ACGUIrES troug Bus “eEss - 30042 4,058 34,100
cormrnnations (note 2/
Aadinens 2125 - 10640 3165
Chsoosals - 121,118} - {21,118}
uaw: or trdr slation - 7930 - 7930
At30June2022 3088 743,456 15314 761859
Accumulated amortlsat:on - . N
ATl by 2025 frestatoed; 107 155,902 1,034 161043
Cisoascals - (2462) - (2462)
Loss o transiaton - {192 - 192)
Irnparmen - 7913 - 7913
Crarge for the year i2 37,314 L23 37849
At 30 June 2022 119 202475 1557 204,151
Net book valuew T - o S
At 30 June 2022 2,970 540 981 13 757 557 708
AL 30 June 2021 (resated; s sees0 9 8z 576739
The gamn on ranslation of fore'gn currency de-comirated cocdwill is recognizeq i- other comprehansive

income Amorisation of goodwil is Cnarged o adm n straticn costs
Derzils of e subsimaries acquired gunng tqe year erded 30 Ju-e 2022 can b= found N note 27/

During the year the group dispasec of 2 wing farms in Finlard, as a resull £2 5 of accumutated goodwil

—

"
amortisat.on was recognised nthe current yezar anc £29 37 of goodw!l was realisec on the ale Gair on

D

sale recagrised in the proft ana loss in relatico~ to this transaction was £281

irmpairent of £739m has been racognised on goedwll (2521 norej,
|

No asets have ceen plecged as secarity for habil ties gt year end (2021 rone
12 k;

The Compary bad no ntargio.e assets a1 30 Zune 2022 (2021 nore;
d /

o ~ R ST PN eRr oy ar = I3
Note 25 Selalis the Snor perioc ao.Lsuments
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B s

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Totat

buildings stations machinery assets construction (restated)

({restated]

Group £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
é;;; HroaREnn SEAE &% RTY e S eneoeoue s mab s et Sk AR B A4 48R B St S+ = <o Ta 8 L8 LS h anasn e PRSI, coxmnsamanssnmmcaser
AL Suy 2021 frestated) 8531 317467 1.655437 27288 43277 2,092,000
Add.hans 825 1,536 7E647 650462 228,008 374480
FX/far vaiue movertont - - 368 - 3,294 3,662
Trarsfers - &8 1066 30,956 {32,070} -
[isposals (135) - (75,551} - - (76,086}
At30June2022 10533 315,071 1745911 118686 310,170 2,504,371
Acéﬁ;r\.ulated depreciation - 7 S S
At Loy 2020 4,410 50,055 424,559 1,29C - 510,318
Cnarge for lrg yoar 183 17,130 81,141 3,348 - 101,802
Disposas - - {182) {224 - {403}
FX movesTen: - - (776) - - (776)
At 30 June 2022 4,593 107,189 494,742 4,417 - 610,941
N,ei soskva,lu,e ] L . A LTI T L
At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,893,430
AL BL ‘]:J'Vwe ZL;JZi irestaten) 7 4,121 227408 1280878 25998 43277 & i,581,682

Incluced within tangib.e assete are capitalised fnance costs directly attnbutable 1o oringing the asset into
use. The net carrying armourit of azsets hetd under fingnce leases included in plant, machinzry, fixtures and
fittings 1s £51,785,000 (2021 £51.534,000 ). Inciuded in network assets s a provision of £1,025000 for
ohsolete equipment and developrnent

The Company had no angible assets at 30 June 2022 (2021 nonej

MNote 2€ details the prior peried adjustments.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
ig

Unlisted
investments Totat

Group o o £000 E’OOOH

Cost and net ’gc";;kmvalue
At1duly 2027 11,600 11,000
Addifions 129,452 129452

‘JISOOV'& o o (195,'0,99},, o 7(105,000)

At30 June zozz

A 30 June 2\42;

Subsidiary
undertakings Total

Company £'000 £'000

R AERARRATIRINET SR IHECT D ThY IS S8 0TS e R RRRTEVFR § SOMERI® 9,800 0 0 % 0 0 b L i cvaue babo chRRBHESE B R 5 SRR W el sn i a@as brded ko badkwh Sabo bt

Cost

t 20 June 2021 2,311,678 2,311,678
Additions 228,300 228,300
Dupo‘ - -

At30 June 2022 - 2539978 2539978

Accumulated :mpalrments

AU 30 June 2021 195,312 195,312
Reversal of impaimierts (195,312) 195,312
\rr ofs

Ata0 June 2022 e e e T s e

Net book value

At30Junezg22 2,539,978 2,539,978

At 20 Jane 2021 2,116,368 2,116,366

000 11000

Details ¢ related underiakings are shownin rowe 29

Unusted investrenis comrprss tne Group's holding of the members’ capital of Tendo LLP g
busines:z, and (s sharehod ng in Bracken Trading Jimeied Fern co-founded Tenda LLP in Oc
the mtenucn of corducting a nroportion of its future trade Throuy the partnerskip. Additiors ana «
n Tendo LiFin . ne with Epms cash

Limited from

o

of urlisted investments relate to Imvestmenis and dvesimen
2s

reguirertents and to utlise surplus funds Fen nas a smal shareno dimg n Zracken Trac

1

e to e, Ferr's rvestment r Bracken Trading Lreed at 30 Jone 2022 was £N L 3 une 202t
Tne dwrectors do not consider Terdo LLP or Bracken Trazing Lirited 1o oo sups:dary underiaxngs of Fern

Tradirg Lirneed.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
E & B SRV
Cash mnciudes cash ir hand and decosits repayable on demand.

Rectricted cash represcrts cash for which the Group does not have immediate and direct access or for
wh'ch regulatory or legal reguircrents estr-ct the use of the cash,

Group
2022 2021
P B aeerannm e e £l°o° E'OOO
Casnatoankend o para T ' 195,825 117141
Restncted cash 60,592 55,337
Cash at bank and in hand o - 7 T 256,415 o 172478

"

Restricteq cask s comprised of £726,000 beld in Escrovw and £59 886,000 of cash held i subsidiares w.h
G-annual distribution windows.
Tne Company had g cash balarce of £6.422.000 as at 30 June 2022 none of which was restricted (2021

none)

12 . s

Group
2022 2021
£000 £'000
M o o 1,538 2195
tuel spare parts and consumabies 26,023 18,593
Property developmer:t WP 156,918 73923
T T 1ssa79 samn

The armount of siccks recognised as an expense dunng the year was £120,413.000 (2021 £41,212,600)

ncluded in the fuel, spare parts and consurrables stock value 1s a provision of E38C,000 for unusable fuel
stock 2021 £452 000). Including in property cevelopmeant WIP s a provision of £328,000 for warranty and
site specific provis'ons

Trere has been no impairment recogrised dunng the year on stock (2021 none) No inventory has been

piedged as security for liab litles (2021, none}

Tne Company had no stocks at 30 June 2022 (2021, none).
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
1% o

Group Company
(restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £000

[ R 0 o a £730 T emmckkemrs s R3aEs g

£000 _tooo
Amounts fallmg due after one year
Loans and sdvarces 1o customers 137,662 16,128 - -

Amounts falling due within one year

Loans and advances to Custorrers 223,239 369,384 - -
Trade debiors 42,050 16,121 392 8 3
Amaunts owed by relaied oarnes (note 24] - 3,950 32,950 12751 1
Otner deotors 20,199 24972 3,843 5008
Corporation tax - 6,603 2,527 ‘
Tervalive frarcal rstrurmerts inote 21 54,409 6,469 - -

ed income 145 602 154, 775 176 32616

!

Loars and advances ¢ cusiomers are stated net of provisions of 2128 ’A,fj (2021 E18.139.0C0)
Prepaymerts and acorued income are stated net of provis ons of £7,739000 (2021 £13741.000)

Nointerest s ¢n alances are unsecured

o

arged on amounts owed by grouc underiakings, as toe sJistarding
and repayabl»:— noderrana 2021 none)

Note 26 details the onor penod adjustments
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K ENEETO T S S ST S T T U S S LR AN
Group Company

frestated)
2022 2021 2022

£'000 £000 £000

kgt st the ke sAEAS AR AE Rt a s mhn R h pn A TR h BRI TR U o b SRR B AR A § SR SRR HHS E L RLER A £ hetah S d bR hE 18 b e b b o m b b kA RE RS £ B 5 wahnh B b enthn i haenh Rt

Banx {o rs and overdrafis ffotf 16) 87,732 47,386 -
Trade creditars 58,004 23,390 76
Other taxatton ard sooial secunty 8,161 - -
Otner credite:s 24,362 55006 -
Amounts due to related parties (ot 243 - - -
Finance teases (note 1] 2.428 3147 -
Cervative financal mstruments incte 210 - 143 -
Accruals and deferreg income 75 465 72 087 373

2021
£000

BB ool R e L e T i e v s

Group
2022

Amounts falllng due between one and fwe years £'000

2021
EQ00

B ROl R EAR TN ST G R A N EATTT VISP RN 25 T TR QR TN T TR ey e

Bdﬂk loans ang overdrgits inote 16, 383,070
Finance leases (note 16) 5,899
Derivaiive financial instruments incte 21) -

Cﬁnef cre: ditors 5,364

394 333

247297
6,125
5415

258837

Group
2022
£000

2021

573,416
Finance ledses (note 16) 24,676

Lervatree Anarcal nsiruments inote 21 -

598,002

Total cregitars falling due after more than one year 992,425

£000
577235
24,495
4? 77/
644,502
903,335

e Company has no creditors due in greater thar one year

Amourts owed to related parites are unsecurad, non-interest beanng and repayabie on demand

Note 28 detals the orior period adjustments.
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Due zetweer one and fve years

more thar Jve years

UNE 2022

2022 2021

- £000 E'000
R e
383,070 247257

573,416 577235
1044218 871918

The Compary ~ad No pank loans at 30 June 2022,

The bank loans are secured against gssets

Interest rate 2022 2021
PR, s Apguiga Ay e sereery v e £'ooo £ GOD

Vrers ey Linesa T mentn SONIA Blus L60% 429,438 438140
Cedar Energy ana Intrasvucture Jrostec LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00% - ~
Fhos Erery 2 31 ”;g;”;[f: ;Etei%”j 30,946 34,395
Flios Erergy 3 1.2% + 6 month EURIBOR 56,079 -

Boomerang Fnergy Lirmred

ftre Grous with each lo

oan as held by the subsiciary shown celow”

& month SONIA plus 1.50% 284,348 295,344
6.49% {swap rate of 459% +

Carlingtor: Pont Solar Farm Fty Limizec 1.9% margin) 114,026 -

Me'ton Renewab'e Erergy JIK Limited & month SONIA plus 2.35% 85,718 103439

Citacca Wi Holdeo FTY Lid 1.7% + BBSY 31,614 -

Flasa Homes Limiten 5% 1+ SOMA + 2'5% non- 12,306 -
utilisation fee

Zestec fgsel Manargement Limited Fixed rate 2 5/ 43 -

1044218 871918

SOMNIA replaced LIBDR as tne effective nterban+< [ending rate sys:
resulted ir ro commercal impact to the business.

Finance leases
The future mimimum finance iease payents are as folows:

Paymenis due
Not later than ore year

IS

Later tnar one year and not later than &y years

Later tmar Gve yoars

cral ¢

Qross payraents

l_._

Carrymg amount of the llabmty

e from 1 January 20272 The rate change

2022 2021

£000 E'Q00

2,428 2166

5,899 6196
76,461 72,013
84,788 #1375
(51,785) (47609)
33,008 23766

“he finarce eases primanly relate to @ egsed bu'lding and reait
rentai, renewal or purciase onton clauses Rents cayable increase

secured against the eased assets

The Compary ~ad no finance ieases at 30 Jung 2022

Care egupment There are 1o cortngent

e by loca. nflat.or Finarce leases are
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
i? IV T E U PR TE SRR =

Decommissioning {restated} {restated}

provision Deferred tax Total

;i\tl JL:/“?W ‘ 20439 20,933 41,372
increase recogriscd i proft and loss 21 11495 11516
Increase recogniced througn other comprahensve naome - 18,202 18,202
lrisairment 16 C - 16
INCrease recognised in fixed assels 23656 - 23,656
Recognised on subsdiary aCouls'tons - (3.568) (3.568)
Adiustmient in respect of prior years - (5465) {5.465)
Unwinding of discount 249 - 24G
Adjusimeant relat rig to change in accounting ostimatc (3,373} - (3,.373)
At 30 June 2022 41,023 41 597 82,620

The decomriissioning orovison is hiele to cover “uture obligations fo return iand on which there are
operatioral wird, bomass and se.ar farms, 1o ther origina: condit:on. Tne amounts are not expecied to be
ctised for ir excess of 25 years

The Cor~pary had no provisions at 30 June 2022

Note 26 details the prior peried adjustmenrts

LB Do oo s o a0 s L e e

The Group and Company have the following share caoital.

Group 2022 2021

Altotted, called-up and fully paid o £900 ‘ E'000
642 (26 96.755,258) .

1\,61 : zE,Qll .2621“}416] 55,258) 161,662 149,676

Grdinary shares of £010 each

Company 2022 2021

Allotted cailed -up and fulty pald e o £'000 £000

o A4 1 ] Y
} 61F 64/ \2 J21 496 755,258} 161,662 145,676

Crdnary st \dresof "0.20 each

Curng the year the Group isswed 119,866 754 (2027 1. 501,199 278 ) ordinary shares of £0.10 each for an
aggreqgate nomingt velue of £11,987.000 (2021 £150,120,000) Of the shares issued during the year, total
corzigeration of £203,750,000 (2021, £2 316,695,000 was paid for the shares, giving rise to & premium of
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£191,763.000 12021 £173,118,000). Dunng the year the Group purchased il (2021 4 444,0201 of its cwn
ordnary shares of £6 10 each win an aggregate nominal value of Enil (2021 £444,000) Tota. consideratior
of Enil (PC21 £6.844.000) was paic for the shares, givng rse (o a prerum of £nil (2021 £6,299 040G

Trne Grouo has adopted predecessor accounting pr.ncg.es as it was formec as part of a group
reconstruchon, therefere the share capital and share oremicm account are reated a5 1f they had always
existed. Movernenis In share capital ansrg hoth before and after the restructure are reported as mevements
in the Group share capital

During the year the Compary issued 119 86, 75 {2021, 1,501,199,278) ord nary snares of £0.10 each for an
aggregate nom nal value of £11 99 0G0 ( Gze £250120,000) OF the shares issuad curng the year, totat
consideraton of £203.750.000 {2821 £2.21£.695 000) was paid for the snares, gving rise o a premium of
_____ 191,764,000 (2021 £2 168 57500051 Dunng the yvear the Groug purchased i (2021 4,444,020) of it cwn

oruirary shares of £0 10 each with ar aggregate norrinat value of Enil {2021 E44 000
£

Total consicerationr

of Enit (2027 £6.844 000) was pain for the shares, giving rise 1o a premium of £41 (2021 £6,33%2,000]

There is a singie Class o ordnary shares Trere are ng restnictions on tre distrbutor of div.dends and the
repcaymenrt of captal.

Cash flow hedge reserve
The cas~ ‘low hedge reserve is uzed to record transacucns anaing hom the Groug's casn fiow
hedging arrangernants,

Merger reserve
The merger reserve ans

og from e d fererce potweer the fair valus of tne shares 1ssues and the bock

vawes of the subsicianes acaurred

L L R

The movement in non-conrollng interests was as oilows

Group
Note 2022 2021
Group i _E'000 E'OO’]
At July 2 35,721 9,570
Sale of subs.a'a wdesakings and acquesiror 27 _ (1847
of nan cartrolling int e
Total compranensive 1055 attributabie 1o (6,622) (4007}

gi=labietelatice™] IFQ interesss

AT 30 Junc 208 (2 901) 3721
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Az at 30 June 2022 there were 1o

Group or Company.

>f financ:al assets and . abibue

o

Carrying amounts

Group Company

(restaled)
2022 2021 2022 2021
‘000 £000 £'600 ECC0

e PR R A s o T

Group

FreY ST B T S

Carrying amount of financial assets

Debtinsuuments measured at amorticed cost 423,150 430,556 4,235 17767
Maasired at fals value through prohr and lose - 6,469 - -

Measured at fai

nsve income 54,409 - - -

Carrying amount of finan

Measured at arnortised cost 1,126,163

56,384 76 16

Meoasured at fair value through other cornprehensve mcome - 42772 e -

Note 26 detais the prior period agjustrnen
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative financial instruments
Thie CGroup's fna~cial nsk mariagement seeks to rrmirmisa the exposure 1o market nisk, credi? ris<, rquidity
and cash flow risk, ard erergy market risk

a) Market risk
Energy market risk
The energy sector 15 experiencing 5:¢

grific vels of incorre are
not zcnieved due to changes in wholesale

o
Q
2
=
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r
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rgy prices, off-take conracts o gox mm suksidies

arce sreams witnin the
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~
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5
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el
[
.
[
4]
(3
3

=)
Changes iy Government policy, o regulator intery
group due to additional levies

Currency risk

The Group pr sents its consolidared fnancial staterrents in sterling and conducts business in a numrber of
other currengies, prncipaly Eure and Austratan dollar uentiy, tne Group 1= exaosed to foreign
exchamge fisk due o exchange rate moverments, wrich affect the Group's transactional expenses and the
transiation of earmn’rg and ~et assets ¢f its non-sterling ogerahons

Transactional exposures

Transactional exposures anse frorn administrative ana other expense i currences other than tre Group's
resentat anal currency (Sterling) The Group onters in to forward foreigr exchange contracts and foregn

excham e swaps to mitgate the exchange rale sk for certain fore'gn currency payables and receipts Tne

forward currency cortracts and swaps are measurad 3t fair va.ue, which s desrmined Jasing valuat'on

serivanves are the forward

technlques that ulivse observabe mputs. Tre key inputs used i valang the
exchange rates for GERAUD and GBPiUR Cn 30 Jure 2027 the far vaiue of the foreign currency
conracts was an asset of Inil (2021 £6 465%000) and a liab lity of Enil (2021 £142,000;

Translational exposures

Balance shest trznsiaticna, exposures arse o1 cornsolidation on the retrarsiation of the nalance sheet of
non-sterling operatons into serling, tre Group's presertational currency. The level of exposure 5 reviewed
by marager-ent and the potentiai foreign exchange movement s within an acceptable ‘evel of fick and
theretfore, tygicaly, the Group's golicy to not 1o actively hedoge these exposures

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposure to fluctuat ons in interest rates or 1s borrowirgs Where tne Group eners nto

—

borrowing arrangemerts witn float'ng rate interest, & swap arrangement 3 enterad inic 1 A% a portion of
the interest in order 1o mitigate against an norease N irmerest raes. “he port on of irterest to be fixed i3
C

assessed on a case oy Ca%e tasis. Managerent can elect whether to heage account for these
arrange™ents or an ndividuat ra~saction cazis and nave slect erest
rate swans Tho swaps are pased ¢n a orinc:pal amcunt of the date

The CGroup s 2 shart- to mediur-term lenger o the residertial progerty markel To tre exent thet there s

i the level of nouze prnces that affects the propertes that wre Grouc’s ©ans are secured

he Group may not -ecoup s full exoosure. This s mt'gated oy the short-term
[l

£
ture of the ioans a~d the conservatve level of loar 1o value that the Groun s prepared to lend 3t
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Credit risk
Customer credit risk is mitgated through tne Group's credit contral poucies, which are n place 1o ensure
that oLr custormers have an appropriate cregit history and are monitared on an ongoing basis

c} Liquidity risk

Lisuichty nsk are managed oy ensuring that sufficent cash is avaliable to fund continuing and future aperat ons,

Liquidity risk arises on Bark loans in place across the Group and 15 managed threugn careful mentoring of
o]

coverantis and sensibie levels of dent Borrowing 1s on a lorg-term bagis, whareas our revanue s raceived

througrout the year. 35 well as interest ard refdemphions on our snart-tenr lnar honk Casa fow nsk <
rranaged triroqgh congoirg casn flow fore:a:rm“ ooensute apis are sufic ent o meet liazimes as they

fali d.e.

22U e e e e

At the yegr end tne Group ~ad capital commitments as foliows:

2022 2021
'000 £000

F— e R T el bR SR 10 T m Tl R, ¢ v mpe e rhe e bbb RS g MLt emd £ wea Dee deet

Contracted “or b‘ t not provided in these inanc.al staterents 347,254 90,156

Lindrawn faciliies or loars 1o borrowers 173,600 62683

At 20 Jure the Group had total future murimium ease payments under nen-cancelisbie operating lease

as follows

2022 2621

Land and Other tand and Gther
buildings buildings
£000 £000 £:000 E000

e R A 3 RS S YN A BB, NSRS 8 T T e BT PR T Dt € 08 e b Vet S0 S e 489 SRMERE T MR AR

Payments due

Moz later than one year 8,707 661 8,031 749

|ater ihan one year and not later than five 31,627 726 20,369 1,686
YRArs

Later tnan five years 95,664 - 118,932 9
135,998 1,387 157332 2444

Tre Group had no other off-balance sheet arrangemernits (2021 none).

iUnder sections 3944 and 479A of the Cornpanies Act 2006, the parent company Fern Trading Limized has
guaranteed al: outstanding liabilities on those companies tacng the exemption to which the subsid.aries List
on pages /9 1o 90 were subject 1o at the 30 Jure 2022 until they are satished in full. Trese uabilites total
£915m Such guarantees are enforceable againit Fern Trad ng Lirmied by any persen to whom any such
Lab.lity 1s due

Tre Comparny nad ro cap:ta. or other cornrmitrments at 30 June 2022
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
2§ . R

a subsidiary cf the Group, successfully soid
Daringtor: Foint Heldeo Pty bimited to Octepus Ausirala Master Trust A smau profit of £850,800 was made

or the sale.

Ort the 1st of December 2022 the Group acquired rights 1o a Z25m credt voucher a

mobile icenses fromr Three UK, via a Strateqic Connectivity Agregmemt, trus making the first step wowards
becoming an rrotile virtual netwerk aperator

Under FRS 102 323 1A disclosur=sz naad not ce given of trarzactions entered o betweean two or more

memoers of a Groug, provided that any subs diary w‘fwi-ch IS @ party to the ransaction is wholly cwned by
swch a member,

During the year, fees of £77934 000 (2021, £61 154,050} were charged o the Group by Octopas

Investrments Lirrited, a related party dus to s s 3"::ﬁc Nt influenice over the entity Octopus Investments
Limited was recharged legal ard orofession 10,155 12020 £16.000) by the Group At the
vear erd, an amount of £5,500 (2023: £219,000) was outs-\ar‘sdmg whicr is inciuded in trade

S
reditors,

Il

The Groun s ertitled to a profit share as a rasut of it investment in Terido LLP. & related party due m xey
rmanagemer: personnel in commaon n 2022 2 share of profit equal to ££,249.000 (2021 £445,000) has

i)

been recegnised oy the Groun At the year end, the Group has an irterest in the member's cap-tat of
£35,452.000 (2021, £11,000,000) ard accrued ncome due of E5,27:’3,F 00 (2021 £473,000)

The Group engages ¢ lending activities whicr incude palances provided 1o rewated parties Regarding
entities win key management persornnel 11 com ion, .cans of £53,490, 050 (’02 £173,224.000), accrued
income of £19,783,000 12021 £26,2032,000) and deferred nicormre of Eni (2021 £101,000) were cutstanding
at year enc. During the year interest income of £7160,.000 (2021 £1/.581,000] and fees «f £354 000 (2021

536,000} were recognised i~ relaton o these loans

During the year the Group acauired 9 resarve powes companies from corpanies managed by Ociopus
Investments Lirnited, a reated party See note 27 a) ‘or detais cf tre companies acguired

Az at 30 June 20z2 £l (2028 £2,8505,275) was owed 1o tne Company by Bracken Tracing Lirnited. a releted
iage

party by key managemert parsonnal In cortmon,

Other than the trarsactions disc.csed above, he Corrpany's otner refated zarty transaciions weare with :ts
wnclly owned subsidiary memiers of the Group

Ir the ooinicn of the directors, there s no ulimrats contoling party or parent comisany
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

25

a} Group structuring review

We have condacied a review of prior yeass' accourting treatmerst of intercomipany restruciuring. In this

review manasgement identifed unamortsed goodwili baiances 11 relation o these transactions We nave
of arortisation baclkaated to when tne relevant

adjusted the
transactho

was FRm (2020 £5

Drev'ous years to refect

tne mplermantation ¢

oNs cocurred The accurrulated imoact for the goodwill amorts:
5 3m) the moverren: of £2 7 has peen restated thiroughout the 2027 comparative

ation in the profi

and .o0ss for 2021

numbars. A surarnary of the mpact of the correction is provded nelow
Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) (restated)
Group £000 £ 000 E’OOD
Goody 583,988 (5,375) J78 653
Retamned earnings 41,185 5,335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{(as stated) (restated)
Group N N o '000 * £'000 E'000
Goodwill 602,711 18,045 594 662
Retained earnimgs (123.920) 8,049 {115,871)

As part of the review of the intergroup restrdcturing mensicned above, managemeant identiSed one of the
! % g

restructures nad ¢

discoverad in the revew, The accumdu ated impact for goodwail amcriisation in

“he gcrofit and |

pecnancorectly accounted for in a sub sectior oF the group. No further errors were

s for 2021

was £2 5m (20200 £1.3m) the movement of £1 2m has been "estated throughout the 2021 comparative

numbers This impact to the 2020 opening retained earnings was offset Dy £2 Im wnitten back agairst pad

debt expenses. Managemert rave corrected the identified errar with the following impact

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) {restated}
Group £'000 €000 ....E000
Goodwil 583,988 (o183 554805
Retained carnings 41,185 89S 42,084
Debtors 842,549 (2,724} 839,825
Creditors: amounits faiung due wthir one year (232.813) 496 (232 317}
Fixed assets 1,346,655 30512 1,377167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30June 2021
(as stated) (restated)
Group £'000 £'000 . E000
Cooduit L mmmmm————r—" T eoari (27967) 574748
Rewaned earnings {123,920) (321 (124.24])
Dettors 600,726 (2,724) 598,002
Creditors amounts falling due witnir one year (207,318} 496 (206.822)
Fixed assets 1,551,170 30,512 1,581,682
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Deferred tax adjustment

We have conductec a review of all consoldauon entries at subsectons of the group. We have identfiec an
error relating to 2059 when deferred tax ad,ustiments were entereg as a consclidation entry and had
subsequantty not been revarsed We have checxea the tax oer subsidiary accsunt and nave ensured that the
relevan Dalance: are corect. The error was posted at a2 consolicated leve. only and bas "1ow Deen corected

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020

{as stated) {restated)

Group ) £000 £000 £000
Retained earrings 41,185 (4.764) 36421 ‘
Creditors amaounts falling due within one year (232,813] 4,764 (228,049} !

This has a knock effect nte June 2021, the restated dalances are as Gllows:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2021 30 June 2021

(as stated) {restated)

Group o ‘ £'000 £'000 £000

Rewarned earnngs {123.920) (4,764) (128,684}

Creditors. armcunts talkng Jug ahin one year (207,318) 4,764 [202.554)

r prenaring the tax computat.ons for 2022, the Group's tax advisors have noticed an overlocked

SIUMDUICN in pravious years tax consolaation caicuahons, Within the previousiy urrecogrised defsrred tax

Q\

assets Reld with in the group some were ava:lable or a consoudales level (o cffsel tne Group's deferea @x
lability Ornoanindividoal company basis the deferred tax in previcus years had been correctly recogn.sed. A
oart of these deferrec assets are in relation to cash flow hedges haid within the group which are accounted

T

for within other comrprehensive incorre T he accumulated impac: for the tax cnarge in the prefit and loss
for 2021 was £15m {2020; £15.3m) tne movernert of 300k nas been restated ihrouchout tne 2621

comparative numbers.

Asummary ¢ the irnpact of the correcnen is provided beow:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)
Group ) £000 E'OOO E’OOO
Resred earr ngs 41,185 {15,299) 25,886
Caszh fow neage reserve 53,837 {3.875) 59,962
Cefered tak provisc {36.484) 15,174 (17,310)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated)
Group £°000 £000 £'000
Casn flow hedge reserye 17.098 (2,119 14,979
Ligffirsc LAX Provisions {38,145) 17212 (20,833)
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) (restated)
Group e £'000 E'C0O0 £000
Retaned earoirgs Ass  ds82e 27356
Goodwill 583 988 (34.517) 548,471
Debtors 842,545 (2.724) 839,825
Fixed assets 1,346,655 30,514 1377167
Deferred tax provisions (36,464 19.174 {17.310)
Cash flow hedge reserve 638357 (3.875) 59,962
Creorors. amourts faling due witnrs one year (232.813) 5259 {227,554)
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated} (restated)
Group e EOO0 . E000 £000
Rerined sarm ngs R T essen 12129)  136049)
Goordvall 602,711 {36,011 566,700
Cebtors 600,726 (2.724) 588,002
Fixed assets 1,551,176 30,512 1,581,682
Deferrad tax orovieicns {38.,145%) 17212 (20,933}
“ash flow hedge reserve 17098 (2,119} 14,579
—reditors: amounis fallmg due witnn one year (207,318} 5,259 (202,058}
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
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a) Reserve Power acquisition

Cn 2 July 2021, the Group acquired 9 reserve power sites through the purchase of 100% of the snare capiial
for considerauor: of £18.

The following tables sumrrnanse tre consideration paid by the Group, the fair value of the assets acquirea,

and the habilites assumed at the acqusition date.

Consid

tion o £000

Total ::ons;deratuon -

Cezals of the fair va ue of the net assets acquired and goodwell anising are as follows,

Book value Adjustments Fair value
—‘XEUQBSPIJ e e e i e e e 8J788 o o s (28 5531, : e
Trade and othier ranevablas 254 - 254
Prepayments 635 - 635
Casti and cash equavalents 7858 - 7.858
Trade and oiner aradites (2,206) - (2.206)
L oans (58 816\ - (5M815?16)

Net assets acqulred 28 553 {28,553) -

Total cons:deratlon -

Goodwili result:ng from the DusTess Cormbnauon was ni.l

The consclidated s

\.\s

o
m
iy

ners of compranerave income for the year includes £45, 863,000 revenue anu a

o
S
profit after tax of £ 686 O0C In respect of thus acguisiton,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Doveryard Limited acquisition

On 22 October 2021, the Groun acquired Doveryard Limited and its subs'd ary tnrough tre purchase of
100% cf the share capital for consideration of £12 414,000,

The folowng ables summarse the consideration pad by the Group, tne “ar vaiue of assets acoured, and
abilites assumed at the acquisition date.

C:qnsi@eyation £000

e e ® T e b & e E e WA e et e L REhxbERARS CARRY e b bERHGE GG ihe f gk b ety bt Faat AREARAWEAD SRR LA B bk b i kb ¢ e A b A 3 h % HARSSAE4 EAEAE LI R B

Cash ' 12,377
Direc
Total consideration 13,414

1037

Detads of the fair vaiue of the net assets acquired znd goodwill arising are as “‘cilows:

Book Adjustments Fair

values value

et e e S 1P ot £000 £000 £'000
Fred ases 569 - 569
Trade and other recevaiies 52 - 52

Prepaymerts ana accrued incore 193 -

Trace arx:

Net assets acquired 347 -

QItors

Goodwill

Total consideration

FRSRET SR ON  S E E SURMIP L 3 F PO P S S PRI SR SO P SUE R CHIOE E IO L SU TS N N N RS B S L TR S JE S ¢ S TS T Y TS ]

Gaoodwill resuting from the business cornairation was £13,087.000 and has an est-mated useful ife of 25
vears, reflecting the lifespan of the assets acguired.

The consol dated statement of comprehensive income for the year includes £ni of reverue and a loss
before tax of £123 000 in respec: of this acquistion,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
On 3

solar, througn the purchase of 100% of the share caoital for corsiderat-on of £4,765 000
Tre folowing tables summarise the co

labiltes assumed at the accuisition date.

Ceforred consideration
Directly altrovtabie costs

Total consideration

2 Janaary 2021, the Group acguired Zestec Aszet Mangement L mited a project scurces for roofop

sderatcn paid oy the Grouo, the far value of assels acqured, ard

£'000
2672
1,093
4,765

Details of the fair value of the net assats acquired and goodwill arsing are as foilows’

Book
values

. Eo00 £000
156 -

Trade and other crec tors (574) -

Adjustments

Fixert

Trade and other recervabiles
Cash anc cash equivalents
Other loans

Net assets acquired

Fair
value
€000

(574)

400

1018
(46}

955

w5

COochy 3810
Total consideration 4,765

Goodwll resulting from tre business comipimat or was £3 810 600 and has an estmated usefut

yaars, reflecting the estimated lifespan of the assets acquiras

i:ife of 10

The consoldatas statement of comprehensive income for the year includes £198,600 of revenue and a i0ss
hefore tax of £484,000 11 respect of tns acqu.siton
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

e) Elivia Homes acquisition

Cn 23 May 2022, the Group acgu'red Eivia Foldings uimited and 1s subsdiaries, through the purchase of
100% of the share capital for consiceration of £31,684,005

The following tables summarise th

habilsies assurned at the acquis:uon da

neideration paid by t~e Growp. tre far value of 2ss

e A st of the entit es acqgu red are Incluged in note

eis acqdired, and

Consideration e e < e ot o £'000
C&S' s o adadxt # 4T3 fewnbahohy deTHLED Pt S Aéaug.;gmi
685
+otal consideration T i S 7 31»65»4 A
Detaiis of the far vaize of the ner asseats acguired and goodwill arizing are as follows
Book Adjustments Fair
values value
) o E'ODO ) E'OOO £000
intangitle assets 11,767 - 11,767
Stock 69,939 - 69,939
Trace anrd other debtors 2609 2,609
Casnand cash eguivalents 11,603 - 11,603
Accruals and deferred incorme (€20) - 1420)
Provisions (930 - (330)
Deferred tax 6,000 11,400} 4,600
Trace and ciner Uejvus (694 ) - (69 453)
31 533 »(1400) i 30 133 )
e o T - 1551
Totéi consideration 7 31. 684

Coodwl resulting from the gusne

years, refleciing the Wfespar ol the as

orbimanon was £1,551, 000 and has an estimated Leeful ife of 10

ets acguired

ared staremenrt of comorehensive noome for the year noludes revenue of £25,034020 ard 2
OC

£ £1 502,000 0n rezgect of tha acgas non
J
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R AT

cort.ng Standarg 102, as detaled in ire Financial Staternenis sia

nancal Ke

Cinrreasuning odr performance, the fnancial measures that we Ls

AAD Ainancal me

_‘
o
e
Q
5
lﬁ

2res Nor- S5.res

\hf-_
is compuiad as follows

grovide el debl in addibon Lo cash and gross debt as a way of assessing o

Note

BB 6 BEET M. HAED PO LARRLEA R RRERAT OREY BTE RERAATT BRANN s TARC RESEE A0 RENE T YCT R KRR Y ARE L AT ARG

derivec from our regorted results in order 1o eliminats factors that d|:fort year-on-year compansons The

re preparesc in accordance with Unted Kingdom Accourting Standards, including
rhing on page 35 o

i the Annual

e ncude those that nave beer

o overall cash position and «
2022 2021
£'000 £'000

5 arcd overdratis 15

14, 15

Hank .oz

J rwf !oarws

Gross debt
th ibamP Jm it \df' 8! 1

Net debt

1044218 871,918
5364 -

871 918
(172,478)

699.440

1,049 582
(2 56 415)
793,167
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EBITDA

Earnings before interest. tax, deprecigtion and amertisaticn (EBTDA") s calculated by adjdsting profit after
tex for interest, tax, degrecialion and armortisaticn, in addition ¢ income and experses thar do not relate o
the day w0 day operations of tne Group, We orovide EBITDA in addition to profit after 1ax as it ailows us to
assess our perfarrmance without the effects of Anancing and capital expenditures

The following table deta'ls the adjustments rnace (o the reported resalts

{restated}
2022 2021

£000  £000
31310 (31.012)

o CERREA AR AR AR Y bR AR RRRRI CGHRHR RO SRONARSRORE E FAE CAPHENRAC SUFASSU KT 94280

Profit/{loss) for the financial year
Adil

Amaort sation of Intangib'e assets Z 37,849 37,704
Imparment of ntangibie assets 3] 7513 -
Ceprecation of iangible assets 7 101,802 84697
Inlerest payanie anid smilar expenzes 3] 35,554 56,067

Excepuonal moms 1105

Tax 7 16,224 8,349
Less

Irizorne frorn other fixed Asset nvestmoents (5,245) {449)
Share of operaling orofis i joint veriture - (1.755j
Profit on disposal o subsidianes (29.532) (28.568)
(130) (997}

Interest recevabio and similar ncoms
EBITDA 194,916 104,036

e

BT T

Note 26 details the prior penod adjustments
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gg ) .'::7,:.7;“\5 TN

Detals of the subsidiary undertakings are as follows:

Name

it

Abbots Ripion: Solar Energy Holaing Lireite

qqqqqqqq B R SRR o b

.

Adalinda Solar 5PV 1 Limied”
Agrisa! 2 SN
Al Metworks Uimited™”

Allpoirts Finre Lirnited®

Auchencarroch Energy Limited®
Auquhine Land Company Limiten®®”
Avene Solar Farm Limited”
Bannury Power Limsted™

Batisolaire £ 54714

Batisolaire 7 SARL?

Bestley Erergy Limited”
Beighton Ermergy Lirnted’
Beirneun Wird Farm Ltd™
Belirouse Energy Limited”

Birch Estate Solar Limited™
Blaby Sclar Farm Limited™
BNRG IOW Ummited™”
Bolam Energy Limited™
Boomerang Ernargy Limited
Borsas Energy Limited™
Bratton Flerning Limited™
Breck Solar Limited™

Bryr ¥r Odyr: Solar Developments Holdinas
Limited™

Bryn Yr Gdyr Sclar Developments Lirmted”
Bury Power Lirmited”

Cadoxtan Reserve Power Limited™”

[

s Energy Limited™

fet)

Gid:

o

s~

ark Limited

[

d

Country of

ihcorporation

UK
UK
France

UK

UK

LUK
UK
UK
UK
France
Franice
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK

Ireland

shares

Class of

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

FURT

Principal

Holding activity

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Holding company
Energy generation
Energy gencrat.on
Holding campany

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation

Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
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Name @
Casweil Solar Farm Limted”
Cathkin Energy Lirnitad”™
Causilgey Lirmited™

Cedar Energy and Infrasiraciuce Limited

CEPE Bercerorne SARLY

Cenrtrate Eoilienne de Production d tnerg e d=

Grandbos SARL?
CEPE ce la Salesse SARL?

CERE. de Lacompe (Centrale £E¢°
Production d Frergie de Lacombe) SARL?

CEPE de Marsanne SARL

CEPE Haut du 3aule’

CEPE de la Roche Quare Rwvieres SARL
CEPE du pays de St Sene SARL
CERS S AT

Crelson Meadow Energy dmiteg”™
Crisbon Solar Farm Heldings Limied”™
Crttermg Salar Two Limited™
Cilgwyr: Energy Limited”

Clanr Farm Limited™”

Claramond Sclar 5PV 2 Lirvined™

CLP Developments Limited’
CLP Envirogas L mited™

CLP Services _irmited

CLFEZ Proects L Lirmiteg™
CLPE Prececis 2 Cmited”™
CLFE Projects 3 comaten”™

CLPE RO -1 Limnited™

CLPE ROC - 2 Linrad”

CLFERCC - 3 Limited”

lenne de

Country of

incorporation

Class of
shares

Holding

UK
UK
UK
UK

France

France

France

France

France
France
France
France
France
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK
UK

UK
LK
UK

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordiriary
Crdiniary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordirary
Ordinary
QOrdinary

1G0%
100%
i00%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

1060%
100%
100%
100%

activity

angeie o

Principal

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding cormpany
Energy generation
Dormant campany
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Dormant comgany

Provision of O&M
services

Dormant company
Dormant company
Holding company
Holding compary
Malding company
Holding compary
Holding company
Erergy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Name

R g R B et A b A S G s S a8 FAR A

C_PEROC - Sl‘memd

C_FERCT - 4 trnited”

CLPE ROC - £A Limited™

Clyne Power Limited”

Colsterwortn Energy Limited”
Connon Bridge Energy Lmited”
Cotesbach Energy Lirited™

Cour Wind Farm (Scotland) Lirmiteg™™™

Crapnell Farm Limited™

Crayfern l<omes (South Cazst Limitegt

Crayfern Limited*®

Crayferr Sunley (Shnfold) Lirmited™

Crayrrarsh Limirea™

Cressing Soiar Farm Limited™
Culvery Power Limited™
Cynon Power Limites™

Daten Reserve Power Lirmited™

Dairy House Solar Lirmited™

-

Deepdate Farm Solar Limited™
Doveryard cmitec™

Drapers Farm Lirmnted™

Dulacca Energy Project Co PTY Lid™?

Duiacca Energy Project SnCo PTY Lig!e

Duiacca Energy Froject Holoco Co PTY Ligt?

Culacca WF Haldoo PTY Lid™
Dyffryr Brodyn Limited™
Eakring Lirrited™

Elecso. Camargue SARL?
Flecso. France 7 SARLY
Eienso: France 11 SARL?
Flecss! France 15 SARL*

Elecsol France 19 SARL®

Country of Class of Principal
incorporation  shares .| Holding activity = . ..
UK Crdinary 100% Energy gereration
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy gerieration
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Uk Ordinary 100% Energy generaton
UK Ordinary  100% gjfj:gg’r‘;‘;&g
UK Ordinary 100% Cons{rgctioxj of )
domestic buildings
ik Ordinary 160% g.j\lﬁ.gggi?éi
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Uk Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Australia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Australia Ordinary 100% Holding company
Australia Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Australia Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Heolding company
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 90% Energy generation
France Ordinary 90% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation




4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name ) ) ] mcorporatlon shares Holdmg actw;ty
Eiecsol Fr e 22 SARL® France Ordmgry 160% Energy generatuon
Elecsol France 24 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elecscl France 25 SARL® France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Elecsol France 23 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Flecsol France 41 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Ernergy generation
Flecsol Haut Var SARL® Erance Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elics Energy 2 France SAS* France Ordinary 100% Holding comipany
Elims Energy 2 Limnited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Elics Erergy 3 France SASY France Crdinary 100% Holtding company
Elos Energy Hold ngs 2 Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding compary
Euos Energy Holdings 3 Limted™ LK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Elins Energy Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Elics Rerewable Energy Limuted™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Flvia Developmen: Firance Limitedts UK Qrdinrary 100% COHSUUCDOI’? C.).f
domestic buildings
Qrdinary Financial services
Elvia Holdings Lirnited UK Deferred 100% e -
holding companies
Preference
Elivia Homes (Centrat Limited?’ UK Ordinary 100% C‘O(‘S“"UCUOFJ O.f
domestic buildings
o . Y . L s Construction of
Elvia Homes (Dorrnant 2 Limited UK COrdinary 100% N L
domestic buildings
Elwia Homes {Grange Road; Lirmited™ UK Crdinary 100% Constru_ct\on_ o.f
domestic buildings
Flivia Homes {MNetley) Limiteat? UK Ordinary ~ 100%  Developmentof
building projects
—~
Elvia Homes (Scuthern Limited™? UK Qrdinary 1007% \Tonstruct\or? O.f
domestic buildings
. Cons ‘
Etuia Homes iSurbiton) Limited?: UK Crdinary  100%  onstruction of
domestic bulidings
Eivig Homes smiedtt UK Ordinary  100%  DEvelopmentof
buitding projects
Euvia Nortr Limiteat® UK Ordinary ~ 100%  Developmentof
huilding projects
Construction of
. te !
Eliv-z Oxford Lirmited? - UK Crdinary 100% do”.“es © b““"‘.”gs
Buying and selling of
owr reat estate
Eliva South Liritegh! UK Ordinary 100% Construction of

domestic buildings
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Country of Class of Principat
Name e incorporation shares Holding activity
. RS
Elivia Southern Urnited®: UK Ordinary 100% doln'.westi—c buéld{mgs
Buying and seling of
own real estate
Elicorbe Limitec™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Erergy project
Energy Fower Rescurces Lim ted UK Qrdinary 100% ?f;:al;z}rrzz:rt and
services
EPR Ely L mited” UK Ordinary 100% Emergy genaration
EPR Eve Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
ERR Garford Limued” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
EPR Renewalkle Energy Limted™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
EPR Scotland L mited®™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
EPR Thedford Lim ted™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generatior
Eucaiyptus Erergy Hoidings Lirrsted” UK Crdinary 100% Haolding company
Eucayptus Erergy Lmiteg™ UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Feltwell Ensrgy Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Farn Energy Cour Holdings Limited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Ferr Energy Holdings Limited” UK Ordinary 180% Holding company
Fern Energy Lirmstec™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Erergy Wird Aoldmngs Limited” UK Crdinary 160% Holding compary
Fern Fiore Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Heatthcare Holdings Limited” UK Crdinary 160% Halding company
Fern rmfrastructure Limized™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Fern Renewable Erergy Limited”™ UK Orchinary 100% Holding company
Fern Rocftop Solar (A} Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Rooftop Solar (B2D) UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Rooftop Sofar {(Zestec) Linried” LK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
Ferr Tracing Development Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Fern fraging Group Limdteg LK UK 100% Helding company
Fern UK Power Developments Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Holdmg company
Fipropros Limnited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Supply of fertiliser
Four Burrows Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Fraisthorpe Wind Farm Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Name
Ganaff Energy L mited®

Ciganer Fipre Lig”™

Giganat Limitea”™

Glerchamber Wind Energy Limted™™
Grange Wind Farm Limited”
Guardbrae 5Pz ool

Hargourne Power Limited™

Hayrmaker (Mount Milly Lid"

Hayrnaker (Matswood) Holdings wmited”

Hayrmaker (Natewood) Ltd™
Haymaker (Oaklands) moldings Limmsted™
Haymaker {Oaklanas) Lid”
Helm Power 2 Limuted™

Helm Power Linmited”

Higher Xnapp Farm Limited™
Hi- Ernd Faren Liry ted™
Holizmoor Limited”

HLl Reserve Power Limiteg™
Hurst SPy 1 Lirmized”
Imrmingnam Power mited™
Irweil Power Limited”™

Jameson Roas Erergy Limired”

Jurassic Ficre Howlings Lirmited”™

ternar Sclar Lmites”
Littie T Sonar Lir ted
Littieton Sotar Farm Lemites ™

LLU Cormunications Ltg"™

Logdorn Power Limitea

it e D EEETR TG AT ) T R

Country of

incorporation

T T e

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
Poland
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

Class of
shares

g REnERat % 7r

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordmnary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Qrdinary
Qrdinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary

Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Holding
1G0%

1G0%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
1G0%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
90%

90%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

1006%

100%

Principal
ctivity

e T G e AR R Tt et

Dormant company

Fibre network
production

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Ernergy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding compary
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Holding company

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre netwaork
production

Energy generation
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Lovedean Limiteg™
Lumirarce Solar Limiieg™
M Solutions Lim ted™
Manston Thorre Lirmntea™
March Energy Limited”
tMarden Power Limited””
Marley Thatch Solar Limited”
Meacows Farm Limited™
melbourn Soar Limited™

Melton L3 Energy Limited”

relten LG Holding Limited™

Melton LG ROC Limed™

Meiton Renewabdis Energy (Holaings) Limited™

Meltorr Renewanie Energy Newco Limitec™
Meitor Renewable Energy UK Limited

Mitl Bl Farm Solar Limited™

Mingay Farm Falomg Limited™

MSE Decoy Lid"

MS= Strete Ltd™

MSP Tregassow Limited”™

MTS Hachlands Solar Ltd”
MNevera Power Limted™

Mews Rowy Farrm Lirmited™
Newlands Solar Limitea™

MNinnis Farm Cirmited™

MNorth Perrott Fruit Farm Limited™
MNorthe ch Power Limited™
Notos Energy Cmited™

Ogmore Power Limited™

Oudhall Znergy Recovery Holdings Lirrited”

One Askford Healthcare Limited

One Batfieid hospetal L-mited

Country of Ctass of Principal
Incorporation  shares Holding activity o
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation 4
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generat:on |
UK Crdinary 100% Helding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 1002 Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy gereration
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
[JK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary  109% ’C\Qn’i;frfj’”g

UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Heolding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK COrdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK QOrdinary 1002 Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generafion
UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generatiort
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Cranary 8% eces
UK Ordinary S0% Frovision of

healthcare services
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Name

A IR TR TR RS TR A EROI KRR SRS P S e R T 3 Ee

One Healthcare Parmrmers Limited

Orta Wedgenil Solar Heldings Limited™
Oria Wedgehil Solar Limited™

Palfreys Barton Lirnited™

ParciaL Holdings Limited™

Farciau Limited™
FPark Broadlband Limnited”™

Pearmat Solar 2 d™

Pitchfors (Condover dirfela & Stockbatoh

Lirmited™

Pitts Fare Lirmteg™
Forthos Zolar Limited”
Pyrms Lare Solar ctd”

Gueens Park Zoad Energy Limied™

Rangeford Care Limiied”

Rangeford Chertzey Limitea™

Rangeforg Crrercester Limited™

Rangeford Doreng Limted”

Fangefora RAP Limited™

Rangefora Retsrement Layng Holdings Led™

Rargefora Stapieford Limiteg™

Country of Class of Principal

incorporation shares Holding activity ‘

UK Ordinary 85% Holding company

LK Qrdinary 100% Holding company

UK Qrdinary 10G% Energy generation

UK Ordinary 106% Energy generation

UK Ordinary 100% Holding company

UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

UK Ordinary 100% Fibre network
production

UK Ordinary 10G% Energy generation

UK Qrdinary 100% Erergy generation

UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation

UK Ordinary 100% Haoiding company

UK Qrdinary 100% Erergy generation

UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation

UK Orctinary 100% Care serwce_s) for a
retirement village

UK Ordinary 100% Rewement village
development

Uk Ordinary 100% Retirement vilfage
developrment

UK Ordinary 100% P.\etwement viltage
development

UK Ordinary 100% Hoiding company

rer il

UK Ordinary  100%  Relrementvillage

development
tirer £

UK Ordinary  100%  Letrementvillage
development

UK Ordinary 10C% Holding company

UK Ordinary 100% Retirernent village
development

UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation

UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation

France Ordinary 100% Energy generation

UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

UK Grainary 100% Fibre network

production
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name —
Singrug Holdirgs Limted™

Singrug Lrnited™

Six Hills tane (Ragdalel Limitea™
Sxelbrocks Fnergy Limited™

Siaughtergate Limite

Snetterton Renawable Power Fuels Limited”

Snetterton Renewable Power Howdings Limitea™

Snetierteon Renewable Power Limited™
Solarh LPOS SARL®
Soiarfi SPO1 SARLS
Solarh SPO2 SARL
Solarf $PO4 SR
Solarf SPOS SARLS

Solarf SPOE SARL®

8]
W

Solarh SP10 SARLY

Southcombe Farm Limited™

St Asap- Power Lirited”

Steadfast Parkhouse Sclar Limited”
Steadiast Rudge Solar Ltg”

Steadfast Shiston Beliger Solar Limited™
Stellar Power Limited”™
Stoneyhill Energy Limitec?
Sulis Energy Limited™”
Surrmmersion Energy Limited?”
Sunley Crayferr Lavant LLPY
Swish Fore Contracting Limites?®
Swish F.ore Limited®

Sw.sn Fibre Newworks Lrd?

Swich Fibre Services Lim.tod®

Swish F.bre Yorksnire®

Syvisn Trading Limited™

Country of Class of
) i‘ncorporation shares

K Crdinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
LIK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Qrdinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK NA

UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary

100%
1C0%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
10C%
100%
100%
100%
160%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
50%

100%

80%

100%

80%

160%

8O%

Principal

Holding activity ...

Holding COmpaﬂj
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Supply of biomass
fuel

Hold'ng company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generalion
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Dormant cormpany
Holding company
Energy generation
NA

Fibre network
producton

Holding company

Fibre network
production

Fibre network
production

Fibire network
production

Holding company
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Country of Class of Principal
Name e e - AICOTPOration shares  Holding activity
TGC Solar 102 Limited™” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
TGC Solar 107 Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
TGO Sotar 68 Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
TGO Solar 82 Lirmted” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
The Fern Power Corpary Limited” LK Ordinary 100% Holding company
The Holhes Sclar Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Thoresby Estate (Budby; Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Tiltngrarn Fower Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Todnills Energy Limitea™ UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
Tredown Farm Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Turves Saar Limied”™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
UKSE 15 Solar imited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Urited Mines Energy Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
VCSE Lig UK Ordinary  100% Sggﬁgvnork
Viclona Somar Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Viners Erergy Lirnited UK Ordirary 160% Holding company
Vitrify Lirnited™ UK Ordinary  100% Egiﬁf;m
Volafrance 01 SARLS France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Voliafrance 05 SARL® France Ordinary 10G% Erergy generation
Volafrance 12 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Vouafrarce SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Vorboss Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Haolding company
Vorposs US Ing? USA Crdinary 100% Egguﬁ;&f\frk
Wadsw ck Green Lirnted” UK Ordinary 100% zggigfm vlage
Waasw ok Green Property Serv.ces Limited” UK Ordinary 100% ii;‘ﬁi;gi;?e
Warr rgton Power Lmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Waterloo solar Park = alangs Lrnited”™ UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Waterlos Sclar Park o rroed” UK Qrdinary 1602 Energy generation
Week Farm 2 Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Westwoong Power Lrried” UK COrdinary 100% Energy generation

Westwoos Solar Lomited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation




Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
o e s e e COTPOFAtioN | shares Holding actVity e
‘v"‘/ethrahrgj:.’:‘nr{ E’W’?FQ/ Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wiarf Power Lire ted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generat:on
Whiddon Farm Limtea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
Yminney Hill Energy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wincelle Sclar Holdngs Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Wolvernamprorn Power Lid” LiK Ordinary 100% knergy generation
Wryde Croft Wind Farm Limiteg* 3™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Bradford Limiteq™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WHE Hullavirgton Hold ngs Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
WEHE Hullavirgton Lirited” UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
WSE Park Wall Lrnited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Pyde Drove Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Zestec Aszet Management Lirnited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Acquired after year end Date
Fern Rooftop So‘.ar‘(ENBKE)) Limited V ‘ i 09108/"20“2“2‘”»%'
Cuckeao Internet Ltd 31/08/2022
Vitnfi Digtal Lirnited 13/07/2022
400 Lrnned 22/11/2022

“Subsiciaries exempl from audi oy virue of s4804 of the Companies Act 2006

USubsidiar es exerrpt from audit by verfue of s479A of the Companies Act 2006




L N

4 | FiNAN

-~
N

AL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Dlssq’lved or sold during the year and up unt:l s:gnmg‘ S o ‘ Date
Bemﬁ_l}z.; o e e e £ = e e M20,’o7/205{1
Ridge Wind Azquisition Limited 20/07/2021
Fern Energy RidgeWind Acquisiions Umited 14/0%9/2021
Ferm Erergy RidoeWind Hodings Lirr ied 21/09/2021
Farn Enercy Partnerships Holdings Lmited 21/0972021
sihoroe (Molding) Limited 29/03/2022
DY Cldhall £regy Recovery Limited 13/08/2022
Comme2l Lta 15/05/2022
Dariington Point Holdoo Pty Lireted 08/07/2022
Dariington Point Solar Farm Pry Limited 08/G7/2022
Darimgton Point Sucholdoo Pty Lirmited 08/0712022
Nerdic Power Zeveloprnent Limsted 2371212021
Voyrinkangas Wind Farm Oy 231212021
Saunamias Wind Farm Oy 23/12/2021

The registered offtce of gll companies lsted acove is at 6th Floor, 33 Hoborn, Lordon, England, ECIN 247
except for incse sel cut pelow.

1 ul Grzyoowska 2/29. C0-131. Warsaw, Polanc

2. Pnzent Masons LLP, Capizal Square, 58 Morrson Sireet, Edimburgn, Scotiand, EH3 8BP

(W

1 West Regerr 5¢

=

eetl, Liasgow, G2 1AP

4. 22 rue Alphonse ce Neuvilie, 75017 Par's, France

5 a. Square, Dublin 2, 02 AZ42, Ireland
G use, Staton Worxs, Stator Road Clavercor, Warwic<shre, United Kingdom, CV32S SPE

curtine 115 Rue Du Mcourelet 834000 Avignon, France
Frgland, wWiE 1FS

ompary. Corporation Trust Center, 2209 Crange Streer, Wimington 19801

10 4tn Floor Salire Court, 20 Castie Terrace, Ecinburgy, Scotisno, EH1 ZEN

11 Apollo House, Mercury Par Wycornbe Lane, Wooburn Greer, Higr Wycorbe, Engiandg, HEPLG OHH
12 itevei 32 1CL Collins Street, Melpourne, Wicicra, 3000, Ausiraua

12, Beaufort Court, Egg “a-m _ane, Kirgs tang.ey, Bertdfordsnre, Wh4 8L

14 7-8 Sustfoqd Place, Le-don, =ng.and, WIC 1AY

The directors believe tnat the carryirg value of ine investmenis s supparted by ther uandernyrg net assats.
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5 APPENDIX — SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE (UNAUDITED)]

Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

Fern Trading Limiied 13 an unlisied company. Zvery monih, ous Baadd of Directors agrees a price at which it
will be witlling to ssne new shares 7 he share price is unaudited.

Tha fgures below incluge tne share price of the previous parent (now Fern Trading Group Lirmited) as well
as this entity.

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited
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Performance is caicu:atea based on the sale price for Ferr's shares at 2 June each year The share price is
not subect to audit by Emnst & Young LLP

A=

Annual disorete performancs

Financial Year Discrete share price performance
Jure 2021-22 9.91%

June 2020-21 ) 4.87%
Jure2mo2o V o 0.33%

June 2018-19 6.23%

JLJ-rwe 2016—1; - - " . - 5.54%

jdne 2015-16 | S - 3.83%

June 20:3-14 3.72%

June 20‘1?13 3.97%

June 2011-22 1.02%

Source Octopus Investments Limited, 2 June 2022,
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Directors and advisers

Directors i Registered office
RS Latham { 6th Floor, 33 Holborn,
KJ Willey ! London, Englana ECIN 24T
PG Barlow
T Artnur (apponted & July 2022) D independent auditors
c . P Emnst & Young LLP
33 & :
smpany secretary © Bedfora House,
Ocwobus Cormrpany Secretanial Services Limitad i 16 Bedforg Streat,
i Belfast 572 70T
Company number
12501636

Forward-looking statements

This Annual Report containg certain forward-lookirg sratements related o the Company's future busiress
and financdial performarce and future events or developrents. These staterrents are based on the currert
xnowedge and expectations of I'Tloﬂa'j'ﬂ"f ert and are subject to assumptiors, rsks and unceriaintes, some

of which are reiated to factors that are beyond the contro! of the Comoany Accordingly, no assurance ca
tre

&}
n

given Inat any particular expectat on will e met and forward-.coking statements regarding gast trends or

activiiies shoLla not be taxer as a represerntation that such trends or activiies will cortinue in the future, Past
cerformance carnot be relied on as a guide o future performarce. Mot ng in th s Arnlal Report smould be

]
Q

nstrued as & proft forecast

e
&m Eri
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